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PERTINENT FACTS ABOUT THE CITY OF ALLENTOWN
GENERAL

The City of Allentown is the county seat of Lehlgh County and, with 106,632 residents, according
to the U. 5. Census Bureau 2000 estimate, ranks as Pennsylvania's third largest city. The
Allentown-Bethlehem Metropolitan Statistical Area, comprised of Carbon, Lehigh and
Northampton counties is the third largest urbanized area in the Commonwealth, with population
estimated at 611,764, Only the Philadelphia and Pittsburgh areas have more residents. The City
is sirategically located within a 300-mile radius of the larger metrepolitan areas on the eastern
seaboard of the United States.

CITY GOVERNMENT

On April 23, 1996, the voters of the City of Allentown adopted a Home Rule Charter pursuant to the
Home Rule Charter and Optional Plans Law, Act of April 13, 1972, P.L. 184, as amended, 53 P.5.
Sections 2901 et seq. The City's Home Rule Charter took effect on the first Monday of January
1997. An elected Mayor with a four-year term serves as the chief executive of the City. A seven-
member part-time City Council slected at large for four-year staggered terms forms the legislative
branch of the City govaernment. The other elected City official is the City Controller who serves a
four-year tarm. The Gity Council helds regular public meetings, at least twice a month, usually the
first and third Wednesday of each month, in order to enact leglsiation in the form of ordinances
and resolutions.

INDUSTRIES/ILABOR FORCE

The Allentown area remains an attractive location for new and existing businesses. A number of
major corparations, including Mack Trucks, Inc., Alr Products and Chemicals, Inc., Olympus, L3I
and PPL have sclected Lehigh County as their headquarters or as the location of their princlpal
plants. Other major industries include apparel, electrical and electronic equipment and fabrlcated
metal products, Investments have remained strong in Allentown and the Lehigh Valley area
relative to the state and northeast as a whole.

TRANSPORTATION

interstate 78, W.S. Routes 22, 222 and 30% and several state highways radiate from the City and the
Lehigh Valey and provide access to the major markets and ports of the East. The Northeast
Extension of the Pennsylvania Turnplke is located approximately three miles west of the City.
Railroads serving the Lehigh Valley area include the Consolidated Rail Corporation and the
Canadian Pacific Railroad. Conrail has a large classification yard in the Allantown area.,

AMENITIES

The City of Allentown is home to a variety of cultural and educational facilities including two
colleges, multiple museums, theater companies, orchestras, and bands. The City maintains 2,000
acres of park land, well above the national average. The downtown area is in a transition period
and a major effort is being made to attract new enterprises to Hamilion Street. Increased
downtown activity will become a catalyst for continuing interast in the area.
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Larry Hilliard
l er Dhirector of Finance
B10.4377500 fax 010 4377675

hilliard@allentowncity.org

Allentown

June 26, 2009

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
Allentown, Pennsylvania

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CALR) of the City of Allemtown,
Pennsylvama, for the fiscal yeor ended December 31, 2008 15 submitted herewith. This report was
prepared by the City's Department of Finanee. Responsibality for the accuracy ol the presented data
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City.
We believe the data as presented, is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manmer
designed to fairly sel forth the financial position and resulls of eperations of the Cily as measured by
the financial activity ol its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary 1o enable the reader to
gain maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs have been included.

The City provides a full range of services. These services include police and fire protection;
sanitation services; the construction and maintenance of streets, roads, and infrastructure;
waler/sewer services; recreational activities, parks, community development and planning, and
goneral administrative services.

This repart has been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Pninciples
{GAAP) for govemments as promuigated by the Government Accounlimg Standards Board {GASB).
The financial staterments of the reporting enlity include those of the City of Allentown, Pennsylvania
{City) (the primary government) and its Compenent Units. The Component Units are included in the
City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operaticnal or financial relationships wilth
the City. The Component Units, in accordance with GAAP, have been included in the inancial
reporting entity as discretely presented Componeni Units.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Controls: Management of the City is responasible for establishing and maintaiming an
internal control designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or msuse,
and that adequate accounting data 1s corpiled lo allow for the preparation of inancial statements in
conformily with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
internal control s designed to provide rcasonabie, but net absolute, assurance that these objectives

City Hall ® 435 Hamilton Street ® Allsntown, PA 18101-1692
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are mel, The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost ol a control shonld not
excecd the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimatcs
and judgments by management. As a result of the implementation of GASB-34, the format of the
CAFR has been expanded to include 2 Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A ) section that
provides an analysis of the City's financial condition for 2008.

Budgetary Controls: In addition, the City mamtans budgetary conlrols. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure complianee with lcgal provisiens cmbodied in the annual
appropriated budgel approved by the City Council. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenuc
Fund, and Debt Service Fund are included in the annual appropoated budget. Project-length
financial plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. The level ofbudgetary control (that is, the
level al whnch expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount} is established at the fund
level.

Encumbrance Accounting: The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as
one techmgue of accomplishing budgestary control. Estimated purchase amounis are encumbered
prior to the rclease of purchase orders 1o vendors. Purchase orders which result in an overrun of
approved appropriation balances are not released unless sufficient unencumbered funds are available
for transfer in accordance with the City's Administrative Code or, in the absence of such available
finds, until a supplemental appropriation is approved by City Council from the respective
unappropriated fund halance.

{OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audif: The City's Admimstrative Code requires that an annuval audit of the
bocks of account, financial records, and transactions of the City be performed by independent
certified public accountants, The accounting firm of Reinsel Kuntz Lesher LLP was selected by City
Council in 2006 te perform the annual andii lor fiscal years 2005 through 2007, with an additional 2
yedr extension to 2009. In addition, various bond indentures also require such an andit. The Cityhas
complied with thns requirement and the audiiers' opinion has been included in this report.

Imtiatives for the Year: The administration placed its 2008 focus on the continued
revitalization of the cily, A significant effort was made to bolsier conlidence in public salety by
implementing strategics to elfectively and efficiently utilize the police force and to further reduce
cnme. The city began the rebuilding of the police department, following numerous retirements in
late 2005 and in 2006, The city began to employ technology, such as cameras, to assisi the
department. The fire departmenl continued ils leadership over emergency management training,
establishing Allentown as a paccsectter in emergency certified employces and management practices.

In addition te continuing efforts in public safety, Allentown has mamtained an aggressive
redevelopment effort under the guidance of the Department of Community and Economic
Development. The work of the department, sapported by numerous legislative and civic lcaders has
resulted in several distinct economic development projects, including a AAA level minor league



baseball stadium. Oiher imtiatives are in motion, particutarly in the downtown arca and the Arts
District, with more prospective development in the planning stages.

Durmg 2007 and continuing in 2008, the new city administration undertook cost containment
measures and revenue generaling efforts to aclneve positive ongeing finances, addressing several
years of unfavorable budget variances and a negative General Fund balance. In 2006 the City also,
implemenied a lease/sublease transaction (in effect a loan) to climinate the accumulated negative
fund balance.

While the City General Fund rebounded from 2006 and 2007, in 2008 the revenues were
significantly impacted by the econemic times.

The City will periodically utilize loans or bonds to finance infrastructure, but does not forses
borrowing for any other nonessential major expenditures.

Acknowledements: The timely preparation of the comprehensive annual finaneal report was
made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Department of Finance. We would
especially like to express our appreciation 1o the following staff members who assisted and
contributed so significantly to its preparation: Michael T. Sinelair, Daniel B. Eddinger,
Meiody A. Sajeski, and Maria T. Quigney.

We would also Hke to thank the mayor and City Council for their continued support in
plamming and coenducting the financial operations of the city in a responsible and progressive mammer.

Sincerely,
- LA T )
O(iw% DUt @h Y. ﬂ,@ %
Lawrence F. Hilliard Beth A, Mohylsky
Director of Finance Manager, Treasury & Accounting
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Allentown, Pennsylvania

VWe have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggreqate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregals
remaining fund information of the City of Allentown as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008,
which collectively comprise the City of Allentown's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Allentown’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Allentown Economic Development Corporation and the Allentawn Parking
Authonty as of and for the years ended June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2008, respectively, which
represent 97%, 95% and 83%, respectively, of the assets, net assets and revenues of the discretely
presented component units column. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it refates to the
amounts included for the discretely presented companent units, is based on the reports of other auditors,

YWe conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the United States of
America and, except for the Allentown Parking Authority, the standards applicable to financial audits
contatned in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit te obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statemenis are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounis and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
Inciudes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall inancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of
other auditors provide a reasonable hasis for our opinions.

tn our opinion, bhased on our audit and the repant of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmertal
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component upits, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Allentown as of December 31, 2008, and
the respective changes in financial pesition and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

RS McGladrey Hetwork
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The City of Allentown adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporing by Emplovers for Postemployment Benefits Ofher than Pensions, and
Staternent Mo, 50, Pension Disclosures, during 2008.

In accordance with Government Audifing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 26, 2000
on our consideration of the City of Allentown's intermal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal contral over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reperting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

The required supplementary information, such as Management's Discussion and Analysis {"MD&A"),
budgetary comparison information and pension information are not a required part of the basic financial
staternents, but are supplementary infermatian required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of Amenca. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inguiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express na opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinicns on the financiai statements that collectively
comprise the City of Allermtown’s basic financial statements. The combining statements and schedules,
listed in the table of conients as supplementary information, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not & reguired part of the basic financial statements. 3Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whale,

The accompanying introductery and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

M ;?/M%}Dzﬁﬁr L

Wyomissing, Pennsylvania
June 26, 2009
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City of Alleniown, Pennsylvama
Management Discussion and Analysis

CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANILA
MANAGEMENT'S PISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) presents a narrative overview and analysis
of the Ananeial activities of the City of Allentown (the City) for the year ended December 31,
2008. We recommend that it be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial
statements and noles to financial statements in order to obtain a thorough wnderstanding of the
City’s financial condition at December 31, 2008, Additiconal information is provided in the
Transmittal Letter preceding this Management Discussion and Analysis which can be found on
pages I-3 of this report. This discussion focuses on the City's primary government. Component
units, unless otherwise noted, are not included in this discussion.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During 2008, the City’s total net assets decrcased by $4,735 914, Net assets ol governinental
activities decrcased S8.738,0235 and net assets of business-type activities increased $4.002,111.
The decrease in the governmental net asscls was due o the decline of revenues such as Deed
Transfer and Local Services Tax collections.

Property tax rales remained at 17,32 mills in 2008,
OVERYIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial scetion of this report consists of four parts:

Management's discussion and analysis (this section)
Government-wide financial statements (inciuding nores)
Required supplementary information

Supplementary information

Management’s discussion and analysis is a guide to reading the financial statements and provides
related information to help the reader to better understand the City government. The basic
financial statements inclide notes that provide additional information essential to a full
understanding of the financial data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. Required supplementary information is provided on the City's pension plan and
budget-to-actual Ggures for major funds. In addition to these required elements, an optional
supplementary section is included with combining and other statements that provide particulars
alroet non-major funds,

The basic financial statements present two dillerent views of the City,



City of Allentown, Pennsylvania
Management Discussion and Analysis

. Crovermment-wide financiol stoatements, the first two statements, provide a broad
overview of the City’s overail financial stafus as well as the financial status of the
City’s component units, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

. Fund financial statements, the remaining statements, focus on individual parts of
City government, They provide move detatl on operations than the government-
wide statements. There are three types of fund financial statements:

o Croversmental funds statements show how general government services such
as public safety were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for
future spending,

o Propriciary funds stotements offer short-term and long-termn financial
information about the activities the City operates like a business, such as the
Water Fund.

o Fiduciary funds statements reflect activities involving resources that are held
by the City as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, including the City's
retirement plans. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
statements because the resources cannot be used to support the City's
programs,

Table A-1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one
another,

REQUIRED COMPONENTS OF THL COMPREHENSIVE ANNMUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

|
A

Management's Supplementary
Dhigcusgion and Basic financial Infarmation
Analysis Sratements A, Kequired
H. Optional
Government-wide Fund financial MWoles o Findneial
[mancial statemenis staternents statements
Summary -+ = Detait




City of Allentown, Pennsylvania
Management Discussion and Analysis

Table A-2 summarizes the major featares of the City’s financial staterments, including the area ot
the City™s activilties they cover and the tvpes of information they contain,

Table A-2: Major features of the government-wide and fund financial statements

Covernment-widc
statcments

Fund Hinancial statements

. resources foous

resources
measurement focus

tesoutces foous

- - Governmental Froprictary Fiduciary
Seope | Lntire entity and ‘The day-to-day The activities of Instances in which
i component anits operating activites | the City, such as the City
- (except fiduciary af the City, such as | the Water Fund adminisrers
_ funds) public safery and resources on behalf
' public waorks of others, such as
the emploves
L pensicn plans
Required « Btatement of net | # Balance sheet » Statement ol net | » Statement of
. lpancial assels * Staternent assLty fiduciary net
" slatlemenls & Statetnent of revenLes, * Statememt of asscls
activities expenditures and PEVETILCS, » Sateroent of
changes in fund gxpeises and changes in
balance changes in net fiduciatry net
assets assets
« Sratement of
cash flows
Accoonting basis  Accrual Muodified acerual Accrual Accrual
and measurement  accounting and acconnting and accounting und accounting and
Meus | eCOnomic current financial Coonomic Coonomic

tesources focos

- Twpe of asset and |
liability
information

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital, short-rerm
and long-term

Type of inflow
and cutflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during
vear, regardless of
when cash is
reczived or paid

Current assets and
liabilities that
conte due during
the year or soon
thereatter; no
capital assets or
[ong-term
liabilities mghided

which cash is
recetved during the
¥ear ar s00n
thereafter,
expenditures when

. goods or services

have besn received

. and the related

liability 15 due and

: pavable

All assets and
[iabilities, both
financial and
capital, short-term
and long-term

All assets and
liabilities, hath
financial and
capital, short-term
and long-term;
funds do not
contain capital
assets, although
they can

" All revenues and

expenses during
vear, regardless of
when cash is

~received or pald

All additions and
deduceions during,
the vear, regardless
of when cash is
received or paid

10




City of Allentown, Pennsylvania
MManagement Discussion and Analysis

The remainder of this overview explains the structure and contents of the government-wide and
fund financial statements.

Government-wide Minancial sialements

Government-wide financial statements report information about the City as a whole using
accounting methods stmilar to those used by privatle-seclor companics,

=  The statemenl of net assets includes all of the City's assets and liabilities, except
Niduciary funds, with the differcnce berween the two reported a3 net assets,  This
statement serves a purpose similar to that of the balance sheet of a private-sector
busginess.

= The statement of activities focuses on how the City"s net assets changed during the year,
Because il separales program revenus (revenue generated by specific programs through
charges for services, grants, and contributions) from general revenue (revenue provided
by taxes and other sources nol Ued 1o a particular program), it shows to what cxtent cach
program has had to rely on local taxes for funding.

All changes to net assets are recorded using the accrual method of accounting, which requires that
revenues be recorded when they are eamed and expenses be recorded when the goods andfor
services are reccived, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Net assets are one way to measure the Ciny’s financial position, Over time, increases or decreases
in the City’s net assets are ong indicator of whether the City’s financial position is improving or
deteriorating,  However, other non-financial factors such as changes in the City’s real property
tax base and general economic conditions must be considered to assess the overall position of the
City.

The primary government and its component anits are included in the povernment-wide financial
statements,  Component units reflect the activities ot legally separate government entities over
which the City can exercise influence and/or be obligated to provide [nancial support. The City
has three diseretely presented component vnits including the Allentown Parking Authority, the
Allentown Redevelopment Authority, and the Allentown Economic Development Corporation,
Complete and detailed financial statements are included in the appendix to this document.

There arc two categones of activitics for the primary government.

+  Goveramental activities melude the City’s basic services such as general povernment,
public safety, community development, public works, health and sanitation, parks and
revrealion.  Properly taxes and operaling grants aod revenucs finatce mast of these
activitics,

s Husipness-type activities such as the water {und, the sewer fund, the solid wasie fund, and
the municipal golf course fund charge a foe 1o customers to help cover the cost of
services.

Met assets of the governmental activities differ from the governmental fund balances because

governmental fund level statements only report transactions using or providing current financial
resources. Also, capital assets are reported as expenditures when financial resources (money) are
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expended to purchase or build assets. Likewise, the financial resources that may have been
borrowed are considered revenue when they are received. Principal and interest payments are
hoth considered expenditures when paid. Depreciation is not caleulated as it does not provide or
reduce current financial resources. Finally, capital assets and long-term debt do not affect {und
halances.

Governtent-wide statements are reported using an cconomic resources measurement focus and
full accrual basis of accounting that involves the following steps to format the statement of net
az5019;

+  Capitalize current outlays for capital assets

» Report long-term debt as a liability

= Depreciate capital asscts and allocate the depreciation to the proper program/activitics

= Calculate revenue and expense using the economic resources measurement focus and the
acerual basis of accounting

*  Allocale net asset balances as follows:
o Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt
o Restricted net asscts are those with constraints placed on their use by external
sources (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of governments)

or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation

Unrestricted net assels are net assets that do not meet any of the above
restricions.

[y

Fund financial statements

Fund financial statements provide more detailed information on the City’s most significant funds,
not the City ar a whole, Funds are accounting devices, ic., a group of related accounts that the
City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. Some
funds are reguired by state law. (ther funds arc cstablished to control and manape resources
designated for specific purposes. Fund {inancial siatements are reported wsing cuercnt financial
resourees and modified accrual accounting established by the Government Accounting Standards
Board {GASB} for governmoents,

The City has three kinds of funds:

*  Goveramental fundy include most of the Cin's basic services and [ocus on: (1) the flow
in and cut of cash and other financital assets that can be readily converted to cash, and
(2) the balances lelt at year-end that ars available for spending. The eight governmental
funds that the City maintains {General, ’ennsylvania Motor, Community Development
Block Grant, Trexler Fund, Capital Projects, F-911, Bedi Grant and Debt Service) are
reported using the modificd acerual accounting basis, and a current financial resources
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measurement focus.  Consequently, the povernmental funds statements provide a
detailed short-tertn view that helps determine the financial resources available in the
near {uture to finance the City’s programs.

The relationship between governmental activitics (reported i the statement of net assets
and the statement of activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation
thal follows the governmental fund financial statcments.

The City adopts an annual budget for the gencral, Pennsylvania motor, debt service and
capital project funds, as required by state law. Budgetary comparisons are presented as
required supplementary information.

s Proprietary funds report business-type programs and activities that charge fees designed
1 cover the cost of praviding services. They report using full acerual accounting.

s Fiduciary fieds are funds for which the City is the trustee or fiduciary. These include
the Police Pension Fund, the Firemens® Pension Fund and the Officers and Employees’
Pension Fund and certain agency funds or clearing accounts for assets held by the City
in its role as custodian until the funds are allocated to the private parties, organizations
or government agencies 10 which they belong, The City is responsible to ensure the
agzets roported in these Ninds are used for their imtended purpeses.  This fiduciary
activity is reported in a separate statewment of Niduciary net assets and a statement of
changes in fiduciary net assets, These funds are excluded from the City’s government-
wide financial stafements becausc the City cannol use these assets to finance its
apirations.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Net Asscts

The City of Allentown’s total assets were $230.9 million at December 31, 2008, OF this amount,
$175.9 millicn was capital assets, including infrastructure and construction in progress. Prior {0
the adoption of GASB No. 34 in 2003, infrastructurs (roads, bridges, ote.) had not been reported
or depreciated in governmental financial statements.

GASB No. 34 required that all capital assets, including infrastrzcture, be valued and reported
within the governmental aclivities column of the governmentwide financial statements, but
allowed infrastructure to be added over zeveral years. The City behieves U has included all
infrastructure in the 2008 financial statements.

13



City of Allentown, Pennsylvania
Management [Mscussion and Analvsis

Table A-3:

Condensed siatement of net assets

Covernmental Activities Business-type activilics Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Cuorrent and other § 26,865 877 F 33935977 % 17865652 % 16039014 S 4473520 5§ 49994 00]
Argote
Capital assets, net 53,736,123 81,393,489 92,198,203 93940818 175934328 175334407
Other non-curremt 8,238,247 93257268 2,031,727 2,038,047 10269974 11,361,315
Assets B
Tolal assets $115,840,247  £124,674,734  $112,095 584 $112015979 5230935831 5236,690,713
Cumrenl and other § 15,770,468 3 12040949  § 690615 £ 7015793 S 22.711,083 & 19,056,742
Liabiditics
Lonp-lerm 94,248,376 93,074,357 27,712,047 31,559,375 121960423 (26,633,732
liahilities i
Tatal liabilities  S110,018 844 S107115306 8 34652662 S 38575168 $144.671.506 $145600.474
Met assers:
Invested in capital & 20127498 £ 17095445 % 60,620,384 8§ 38012743 % 80747837 % 75.7I1,18R
assets, net of
deht
Restricted net 904,474 7,302,310 o,304,474 TA02310
ALKLLS
Llnrestrie ed net
{deficil) assets {20,610,369) {7,041,327) 16,822,538 14828 8 (3,788,031 7,786, 74|
Total net (deficit) '
assets % BEZ1 A0 % 17550428 % 77442022 F YTi440.811 0 S86,264.325  §U1,000279

During 2008 net assets decreased $4.7 million or 3% to $86.2 million, OF this amount, $80.7
million represents the net balance of long-term capital assets and long-term debt, while $5.3
millien 15 restricied for various purposes.
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Table A-4: Changes in net asseis

The following statement of activitics represents changes in net assets for the year ended
December 31, 2008, It shows revenues by source and oxpenses by fanction Tor governmental
activities, business-type activities and the government as a whole.

Cimvarnmental Activities Business-lype aclivilie: Total
2008 20007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Program revenucs:
Charges fon seevices Fi6ld6,186 5 [4.646.687 5 44026365  F 41708564 5 g0,172.351 ¥ 35,353,231
Cperating granots wnil 17,197,783 10643308 BI3 762 WK ABG LK.021,543 11,593,907
comributions
Capital grants B0 AT [ A0G.090 3180470 1,440,120
General revenues;
Taxcs 47, 185,003 2579300 47,186,003 52,576 320
[nvestment SEmings 162,789 L 490,757 398 554 558,201 1,161,743 2,045 048
Unrestricted granes 1,313,230 6,026,421 1313.230 6028421
Total revenoes 83,786,470 %6, 700,585 45,249,081 43,215,521 131,035,551 130,00 L6
Expecnscs:
Cieneral government 14,193,579 §A96,511 14,193 57% B.496.511
Fublic salely 50,050,502 44,459,264 0,050,802 44 659,264
Communily
develojHmant 12.543.834 9,508 856 12,548 838 508 856
FPrklic works L1,874,90) 11,202 288 11 K74, 900 11,262 283
Heslth and sanitation 3045226 3,283 RBE 1045228 3,283,888
*arks and recreation N R F.a27 532 3,603,303 3527522
Tuterest Iong-lerrn debe 3577, 4, 371250 137727 4 373,290
Water fund 10,663, 1749 10,546,997 10,663,179 L 846,997
Sewer filod 12,607 533 13,047 950 12,607,333 13,047,950
fiunicipal zoll courss 1LOTE (10 1,057,977 1AF7 8,054 L0770
Solid waste fund 12,524,658 11.565.750 12,528,630 11,565,750
Toeal cxponses LE 853,579 B3111.619 I6,B7T ARG 30 518,667 135,771,465 121,650 284
Chunge in nel assets (13,107 509 1,678 966 B 375U 0,090,854 (43914 8375 320
lcfore transfars
Tranaiers 4369484 T389.315 {4365 484} 17,389.3135)
Change in net assars (B, 738,025} 068,281 4002 L1 (G9245E) (4,735.,914) B375. 820
Met agscts heginring 17.559 428 5.491.147 73440511 74,133,272 91,000,239 82,424,419
Mel assels ending FEB2LA0 5 17550428 § FTH42923 ¥ 73 440LE1Y 86,264,325 SOT.000,235%

Total government-wide revenues of $13]1 million came primanily from charges for services of
60,2 million, representing 46 percent of the total. Taxes at $47.2 millicn made up the zecond
largest source at 36 percent, followed by operating and capital grants, and contributions of $21.2
million, or [7 percent. and other revenus sources made up the remaining 1 percent.
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Total cxpenses for all programs in 2008 were $135.7 miliion. The expenses cover 3 range of
services, with the largest being public safety at $50 million or 36.9 percent. The second largest
program arca was the sewer fund at $12.6 million or 9.3 percent, followed by solid waste at $12.5
million or 9.3 percent, the public works at $11.8 million or 8.8 percent, water fund at $10.6
million or 7.9 pereent, communily development at 12.5 million or 9.3 percent , general
government at 141 miltion or 1.5 percent, parks and recreation al $3.6 million or 2.7 percent,
heatth and sanitation at $3.0 million or 2.3 percent, and the golf course at $1.1 million or 0.08
percent, Interest on mustanding debt came to $3.6 million or 2.7 percent, and other services made
up the remaining 0.22 percent.

Net cost of services

Net cost of services expenses indicate the amount of support required from taxes and other
genctal revenues for @ program of the government. In 2008, real estate and Act 511 taxes brought
in 547.1 million. There were 32.1 million in other general revenues and $4 million of general
fund service charges received, Table A-5 depicts the net program expenses for the vears ended
December 31 2008 and 2067.

Table A-% Net ¢ost of governmental xod busincss-type activitics

Total cost of sarvices et qost of services
200k HHT 0% 2007
Program;

General government 514,193,379 5 B495.511 £8.404,809 £5262,240
Fublic safety F0.050,502 44,659,264 41,896,266 37076411
Commuanidy developmenl 12,548 538 9,508,854 186 304 1,761,805
Public warks 11,874,900 11,2602 288 7,490,152 5,494 640
Hcalth and sanitation 1045236 1283588 T61,55% 560,322
Parks and recreation 3,603,363 3,527,522 52,806 1882020
interest oo long-terme debt 1,577,271 4,373,290 AT 4,373,200
Warer fund 10,663,174 10,846,957 (3,523,457} (3,363,901)
Sewer [ynd 12,667,533 13,047 950 {2,330,52%) £1,754,604)
hunicipal golf course 1,078 054 1T 470 (20, 195) {191,985
Salid waste fund 12,525,680 11,565,750 {1,714,464) (223070

Total expenses FL35, 770465 B121630,286 F 34306800 % 52280978

The City relied on real estate tax, Act 511 tuxes and other general revenues to fund 36.3% of its
wovernmental and business-type activities in 2008,

Property taxes and other general revenues covered 39.2 percent of general government spending
with the remainder coming from grants and fees for specific services. Wearly 3.7 percent of
public safety spending came from the property tax and other general revenues with the remainder
coming from grants, [ines, and court costs. Property taxes coversd 1.5 percent of community
development costs, with the remainder coming from fees, charges for scrvice, and $6.9 million
from Community Developmeni Block Gramt {CDBG) funding,
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Public works spending was partially funded through Commanwealth fuel tax revenues, with 63.1
pereent coming from local property taxes and other general revenues. Health and sanitation
received all but 25 percent of its revenue from program revenues, 92.2 percent of which was in
the form of grants. Property taxes and other general revenuss coversd 1.5 percent of parks and
recreation expenses.

Operations of the water fund and the sewer fund are entirely funded through charges for services,
with ¢xeess revenues covering debt service costs. The municipal golf course is almost entirely
reliant on fees for services. Solid waste Mind expenses were lunded at |00 peecent through fees
for service,

Cupiial Assels
The City’s investment in capital assets at December 31, 2008, net of acoumulated depreciation,

was 31759 million, Capital assets consist primarily of land, buwiidings, eguipment, and
infrastructure, Table A-6 (5 a summary of capital assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007,

Table A-6: Capital assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007

Governmental Activities Business-1ype activities ‘Fetal
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2407

Land and Tand

LITMproveImEnts S 9,119,808 f ns3Te 3,739,049 £ ATION4E 5 12BTER45 5 12874424
Buytldings and

improvemenls 31,375,927 o | 316,752 893 18,165 4%} 68, 128,820 67,883,211
Wehicles, machinery and

fquipmeht 7,523 418 5,856,309 13179211 13,807,305 20.702,62% [%663.614
Distribution and celleetion

SysioTs 38,507,052 KLY AN ] 1850752 18,209 085
Tnnfragiructare 15,716,852 36,704,073 35,716,882 26,7073

Total 8 83.736,123 % ¥1,30348% 5 92198205 5 93,240,918  F175 934,328 FIT5134,407

Deetaited information about the City's capital assets can be found in Note 4, Notes to Financial

Statements,

Debt Administration

Long-lerm debt:

At December 31, 2008, the City had $126.5 million of debt cutstanding, including bonds, notes,
and capital leases. This was a decrcase of $5.1 million from the previous year. Table A-7
provides a summary of outstanding debt.
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Table A-7: Summary of cutstanding deht

Ciovernmental Actrvitics Business-type activitics Tartal
200% 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Capital lease 1907 720 § 338471 ' 1,140,421 1,725,578 53048141 % 2,564,046
Bonds and notas &1, T 905 63,456,573 30,437,400 33,602,600 92 138,305 07,055,173
Pension cbligation bonds _ 31,325,000 32,070,040 31,335,000 32,024, 06H)
Total 504,935,625 506,315,044 £31,577.821 FISI2RATE $126,511 448 5131 643215

The amount of indebtedness a city may incur is limited by Pennsylvania law to 250 percent {non-
clectoral) and 350 percent {net non-clectoral and lease rental) of a three-year average of the total
revenue received, exclusive of govermmental gramts for a specilic purpuse. The City’s non-
clectoral debt limit al December 31, 2008 was approximately $197.3 million, and the total debt
cutstanding was $61.7 million, which is below the legal debt limit. The City”s net non-clectoral
and lease rental debt limit at December 31, 2008 was approximately $257.9 million and the total
debt outstanding was $30.4 million. For computation purposes, these amounts have been reduced
by $31.3 million which is the outstanding balance of the 2004 GO bond issuc used to finance the
City®s pension funding liabiliny as allowed by statute.

Dietailed information about the Cig's Tong-term Debt can be found in Note &, Notes to Financial
Statements.

Bond rating

In May 2008 Standard & Yoor’s rating group indicated a positive outlook to the city’s bond
rating. This is the second outlook boost for the city in the last nine months.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

‘The City of Allentown uses [und accounting to ensure and demaonstrate compliance with finance-
related leeal requirements.

The focus of government funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, owfllows, and
bulances of spendable resources,  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, reserved/undesignated fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
the City’s net resources available (or spending al the end of the year, Governmental fund
accounting was nol alfected by the adoption of GASB No. 34, Therefore a schedule is presented
16 reconcile the fund statements to the government-wide statements.

The City’s governmental funds inclode the general fund, special revenue funds, and the capital
projects fund, The general fund is the chiet operating fund for the Citv. Special revenuve funds
are restricted to specific legislated vse, The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds of
bond issucs. The major funds are shown on the sfatement of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balance in the financial statements.

Governmental fund revenucs

Giovernmental fund revenuas by source lor the years ended Decermnber 31, 2008 and Deacember 31,
2007 were as follows. Table A-8 also presents changes from 2007 to 2008,
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Table A-8: Revenues by source, governmental fuads

20k 2007 Chunges frem Percent
2007 to 2008 change
levenues.

Taxes 547,039,302 851,368,491 (54,3209, 289) [9.2%
Licenscs and permics 3450268 1477297 (18,020 )
Chaeges for services 5,804,796 6,613,544 (748, 744) (12.8)
Fioes anid [orfeis 502,504 SETIT 11,767 20
Investment earmnings TH8, 833 1,471,914 iTi3,083) {24 40
Intzegovernmenial meverimes 24407 606 17,132,512 72550494 208
Oiher N 3,664 260 4177786 [5[3.526) 1413

Total revenues HBS, THE 400 $54,842,283 944,186 1.1

Governmental fund revenues totaled S85.8 million for the vear ended December 31, 2008, This is

an increase of $950 thousand from 2007, primarily duc to incrcases in taxes and charges for
services.

Governmeotal fund expenditures

Governmental fund expenditures by [unction for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007 were as follows. Table A-9 also presents changes from 2007 10 2008,

Table A-9: Expenditures by function, governmentul funds

2008 2007 Chanpes fivem Parcent
2007 1 20008 champe
Expcnses:

General govemrment F 7902 093 57 A0E 008 $ 135185 2.0
Public safety 47424025 43,639 004 3.785.021 &0
Commumity developrosnt [2,482.112 .44 320 309 TRG 4.4
Public works 0,985,082 B335 68T A48, 3958 6.3
Health and sanitation 3006E, 20 3,240,068 {234.865)  {7.90)

Parkes and regreation 3,107 088 2,925 50d 182,124 bR

Debt servive:

Principal 2,633,800 3,618,900 {985,100 {374)
Intarest 3,790,395 4305 [28 {604,229} (1640
Capital outlay 10,351,660 4,595 871 4,172 8de 4746
Fayment vl bend/loan issue cost - 1,375,020 (13700200 {10007

Total expanses 3 101,003,860 5 90,352,474 § 8777146 8.9

The City maintaing eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented sepamtely in
the governmental fund balance shect and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
cxpenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the capital projects fund, the
CDBCG {community develapimen block grant) fund, the Trexler fund, the debt service fund, the

811 Fund, Bedi Grant and the Pennsylvania motor fond, all of which are considered to be major
funds.
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Governmental fund expenditures totaled $10T million for the year ended December 31, 2008, an
ingrease of 8.9 porcent from 2007,

The 538 million increase in public safisty reflects a continuing emphasis on community policing
and the necessity to respond to demands for service.

Governmental fund balances

Table A-10 reflects ending halances for povernmental funds and net assets for proprietary funds
ar December 31, 2008 and 2007,

Table A-10: Ending fund halances, governmental funds
Net assets, proprietary funds

2008 2007
Cinvarnmental Proprriagary Cipvarnmenial Propriagry
fumls [unds funds fumds
General F 2205, 180 § 14,137 380
Pennsylvania hotor Fund 943,182 BO4,537
Commrmundty Development
Block Gram £321.292 T 166,57
Trexler {749,279) {318,902)
Capital Projects 1,433,264 3.201.007
E-%1l (306,625 {146,453}
Water fund ¥ 44,440 868 £ 42,693,130
aewer [und 23,804,202 22,878,483
huonicipal golf course 3220302 3,320.037
Solid waste fiund 3,97T.460 4637455
Tutal E[TRET 028 £77 442,922 F26.814.695 73,440,811

The City’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $17.% miltion at December
3l, 2008, Of the total, $8.3 million is restricted for CDBG projects, $1.4 million s restricled for
capital projects, and the general fund shows a surplos of 8.2 million,

The peneral fund balance decreased by $5.9 million, The general fund is the chiet eperating fund
of the City. At December 31, 20018 the total general fund balance was $8.2 million.

‘The City’s capital projects fund holds bond proceeds and serves as the appropriation and funding
repository for 4 variety of capilal projects. Primary sources of revenue (o this fund are receipts
from residential curb snd sidewalk construction and contributions from proprietary funds in
support of appropridted projects,

The General Fund changs in fund balance is auribuled 1o the decrease in revenue of the local
services tax and a decrease in investment earnings. The proprietary fund activity change ot 54

million is due W an inerease in refuse and recyeling collestions in the Solid Waste [und.

Savings in personngl costs wens ineurred through the delay in filling City positions as they
hecame vacant.
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Budgetary highlizhts

The Allentown City Council may revise the budget through transfers or ordinance. Theee are two
kinds of revisions:

» Allocations made to specific line items from other ling items (internal transfers) or from
contingeney funds cstablished in the budger

» Mew appropriations are budgeted when reccived, and the anticipated related expense is
budgeted al the same time

Because the City is on a different fiscal yvear than the Commaonwealth and the federal government,
it 15 difficult to know what grants will be forthcoming in the City’s fiscal year. Some revenue
variances are due to budgeting for grants not received. Other revenue variances are based on
grams received but not anticipated.

The general fund budget for revenues increased $2 million during the year from the original
budget of $75.7 millien w the final budget of $77.7 million. Actual revenues were $6.7 million
below the final budget. This variance was partly due to the $3.8 million decrease in wodal taxes
collected. In addition, [ntergovernmental revenues were $1.7 million lower than estimated due (o
the timing of reccipts.

The general fund budget for expenditures increased $6 million during the year om the original
budget of $70.1 million to the final budget of $76.1 million. Actual expenditures were $3.8
million lower than the amended budget becanse of careful attention to expenditurcs in all areas.

Some large variances between general fund budgeted amounts and actual amounts on individual
lines are due to the differences between budget methodotogy and accounting methodology.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOQOK

As the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s third largest city, Allenlown is strategically
located within a 300 mile radius of the larger metropolitan areas on the eastern seaboard
of the United States. Excellent transportation systems and close proximity to both New
York and Philadelphia make Allentown aitractive to businesses and families desirous of
locating in an area that offers clean air, guod waler, and rolling, wooded topography.

Allentown’s former historical reliance on heavy industry as a major employer has just
about disappeared and local employment trends demonstrate that there has been a definite
shill in the Lehigh Valley™s labor market over the last 10-i0-15 years. A majority of
workers are in office scttings; cmployed in managerial, professional and technical
positions, Skill requirements are rising in most industrics and oceupations, not just in the
high-tech sector,

In 2008, Allentown, like every other municipality, began to feel the impact of the global
recession. Still, substantial progress was made. St. Luke’s Hospital completed s $75

21



City of Allentown, Pennsylvama
Management Discussion and Analysis

million expansion projectin the city. Coca-Cola Park, a Class AAA miner feague
baseball stadium, opened on the ¢ily’s East Side. The America on Wheels transportation
museum opened along the city’s waterfront. The downtown arts district continued to be a
focus of successful revitalization

Fiscally, city expenses continue to increase at rates above the Consumer Price Index,
primarily as a result of previously negotiated or arbitrator-mandated multi-year labor
contracts, increasing health care insurance costs, pension contribution cests, and debt
service paymenls, Revenue initiatives and cost control measures are baing implemented
to counter this squeers,

Both Standard & Poor’s (8&P) and Moody’s Investor Scrvices (Moody's), two of the
financial and investmment community’s most respected and influential rating agencies,
announced significant positive changes in their outlook of how they viewed the city’s
fiscal condition in 2008, It marked the second consecutive year that the agencics outlook
on the city improved.

Governnent, public utilities, education and health services provide the base fur the job
market in the city. Allentown has alse expericnecd an increase in financial services
cmployment; banks, insurance, financial planning and similar services. This sector of the
ceonomy epitomizes the service indusiry with its orientation towards office use and paper
and data handling, an area which has shown considerable growth in this decade. The city
and Lehigh County continue to seek ways 1o allracl new businesscs to the area. New
business stirmutates the cconomy by providing jobs and other economic benefits derived
from productive employment.

Manufacturing employment in the Allentown-Bethlehem Metropolitan Statistical Areas
in the apparel, food, electricalielectronic equipment, industrial machinery and prinling
and publishing areas are strong componenis of the overall employment picture. Mack
Trucks, Air Products, Lehigh Portland Cemeni, Nestle, Olympus and Agere (now LSI}
have sclected the area as their headyuarters or as the location of principal facilities

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
Questions eoncerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional

financial information should be addressed o the Director of Finance, City ol Allentown, 435
Hamitton Streat, Allentown, Pennsylvania 18101,
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CITY OF ALLENTOWHN, PENNSYLWVANIA

STATEMENT QF MET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Primary Gewvernmeant

Zovemmental Buslness-Typa Component
Artivifieg Activites Tatat Jnits
CURRENT ASSETS:
Casgh and cash equlvalents § 21,537 560 } 10240148 F O3TAT06E 5 BT146T2
Receivables (net of aliowance for uncoliectiblas):
Taxes Ta1,8%4 - Tal,E83 -
Loans - - - 854,176
Accounts 148,224 %199 398 8,347 820 -
Grants 3814310 - 3614310 -
Cther current assets . - 341,742
Inlernal balences 573,580 S5 7TE.B00} - -
Trtal current aszote 26,865 877 17,965,652 44,731,529 7.7i0,590
MNONCLURRENT ASSETS:
Caplial azsets, nat:
Lard 3,400 945 3,759,043 12,168,994 2,030, 642
Property hield for development TOW951 - 705,051 1,565,163
Builtings T 197,554 19459 BA8 26067 542 20,890,810
Land and building irprcwermean b 10,323,128 15,873,235 25,096,561 35, TED 48D
Machlnery and equlptrant 4,405 638 11.513,388 15,918,927 &4 078G
Vehicles 3117 879 1.665,823 4,783,702 1,395, 04%
Distribution and collection systems - 38,507 052 38,507 052 -
Construction in proqgress 14,154 907 1310019 15 464,017 22500
Infrastructure 35,718,532 - 35716882 -
Total capltal azzsets, net 53,738 123 92198, 205 175,034, 328 T& Yhk 521
Cazh and cash egquivalents, restricted . . - 149
Met pension asset 798,515 - 8515 -
Loane receivable £,131 6585 - 5151655 -
Other agsets 23089077 | 203177 433804 1,351,232
Tatal nonpurren] aseets 91,974,370 04,229 632 166204, 302 74,104,204
TOTAL AZSETS F 118 540,247 F 112,005,584 3 230,035,831 % Bt,814,794
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounls payvable and ather curent hablhitles $ 4553536 k] 1,605 676 & 6158212 F 647981
Wanes payaole 1,860,082 KELRER 2,248,193 -
Accrued interest payable b23977 3041 1,264 403 -
Claimsa liabiltty 2,244 G530 - 2 244 630 -
Cther lighilities big, vl 77445 204 227 447 BOS
Dye 19 pther governments 6B,074 - EB.074 -
Accruad vacahan 1,458,863 504,015 1,962 678 -
Unearted revenue 714,515 - 714,915
Capital leases payable 456,410 474 735 231,146 -
Line of credit - - - 340,852
Mates and bands payabla 2,575,600 3.550,20H) £.125 800 1,305,114
Total cureent habilities T TR ARD 5.540.615 22,711.083 2. 745,753
MOHNCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Capital lzrses payehle 1,451 310 BE5 685 2,116,835 -
Accryed vacalian 300,482 154,162 459 644 -
Unearrad ravanuea - - - 14,113,122
Othar post-amployment benefif habilicy 2,046,279 - 245 272 25,097
Makzs and hondz payable Q0450 305 26,887 20 117.337.505 26.011.551
Tatal noncurren linhilities 84,248 378 27712047 121.960,423 37,145,800
TOTAL LIABILITIES 110,073, 544 4 652 EB2 144 EV1 508 39 995 553
MET ASSETS :
Invested in capital assets net of releled detd 20,127 498 60,620,384 BO.74T.BEZ 44 834,016
Resfricded far rogds e3 182 - GE3 182 -
Rasiricdad for S0 Black Granis 8,321,292 - 321,292 -
Unrestricledideficity 120,510 BR5) 16,822,538 (3. 7B5.03F) [2.014.775)
Talal nef assets : 2,621,403 7T 442 922 65,264,325 41,019 241
TOTAL LIBBILITIES AND MET ASSETS F 118,840,247 5 112,005,584 i 2305935931 & B1.314,794

Sea Males ko Finencial Slatements
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENCDED DECEMBER 31. 2008

Pragram Revanugs

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Senrvices Conlributions Contributions
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS:
Prmary government:
Govermnmental activities:
General government S 14,193,575 5684480 §F 124200 8 -
Public zafety 50,050,302 6.602,040 1,652 489G -
Community development 12,548 838 1,949 534 0,812 536 S00,000
Puklic works 11.874 800 1.418 830 2,063,770 902 04E
Health and sanitation 3.045 228 177 924 2105443 -
Farks and recreation 3,603,363 332,878 1,433 243 1,778,431
Interest on long-term dekbt 3577271 - - -
Total governmental activities HE 893 879 16,146,186 17,197 783 3,180,479
Businags-type activites;
Water fund 10,663,179 14,122 453 G4 183 -
Sawer fund 12 607,633 19,035 858 102,198 -
Municipal golf course 1.078 054 1.278.723 3,568 -
Solid waste fund 12 528 68D 13,589,330 853814 -
Total business-type activities 268,877 486 44,026,365 23782 -
Tolal primary government 1357714658 % 60172551 318,021 549 3130479
COMPONENT UMITS
Allentown Redevelopment Authority £ 1476425 % 1505024 F 1 147 634 -
Allentown Economic Development
Corporation 3,020,515 1.082 643 5,114 593 -
Allentown Parking Auwthaority 5435857 6,244 252 19,887 -
Tolal componenl units $ 0532797 5 8812810 F 6282214 ¥ -

General Ravanuss;
Property laxes
Act 511
Ufility Realty
Deed Transfer Tax
Grants and charges not restricted
to specific programs
Invastment earnings
Transfers

Total general revenues and ransfers

Change in net assets
Met assets - beginning

MNet assets - ending

See Motes to Financial Statements

Statement consists of both facing pages
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Met (Expense} Revenue and
Changes in MNet Assets

Governmenlal  Business-Type Componant
Activities Aclivities Total Units
$ {8404 BO9} $ {8404 E00)
(41,896, 265) 41,808 266)
(186,368} (186, 368)
{7.450,152) (7.490,152)
(751,859 (761 .654)
(52 808 (52 B0&)
3,577,271 (2577 271)
(52,369,531 {52,368, 531
- $ 3823457 3,523,457
2,530,525 2,530,525
- 204,105 204,105
- 1,714,464 1,714 464
(B2, 369.531) 7,972 841 {54, 306,600
@ 1177133
3,155,821
B28 282
b 5182236
29,525,118 - 29,525,118 -
16,354,317 - 18,354.317 -
88,555 - 838,555 -
1.238.013 - 1.238.013 -
1.313,230 - 1,313,230 -
FE2, 780 398 954 1,161,743 241 410
4 360 484 (4, 369 484) - -
53,631,508 £3.970 530) 45,660,976 241 410
[8.738,025) 4002 111 (4,735,914} 5,403 646
17.559.428 73,440,811 81,000, 238 36,515,685
$ A.821403 S 77447 822 3 86264 325 $41519241
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CITY OF ALLENTOWM, PENNSYLVANIA

BALAMNCE SHEETS
GOVERMMENTAL FLUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

Fennsylvania
General Watar
ASSETS
zesh and gash equialents % 10,054 250 5 1124383
Receivables:
Taxes 701,893 -
Loans - -
Arcolnts .
Grants 4T 4493 -
Drier fram other funds 1,445 ,83% -
TOTAL £ 12,559,475 £ 1,524 587
T DEFI
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,130 5406 99 660
Acorued weages payable 1,763,781 41,541
Criee to other funds - -
Cue to other governments 4, bB4
Deferred revenues £06, 866
Oiher liabilities 761,45
Tatai liabilities 4.364,286 141,201
FUND BALAMCES:
Reserwed for engumbrancas 340,133 .
Reserved for specfic fund balances - 983 182
Unreserved {deficils], undesignaled 7.3B5.008 -
Tedal fund balances (dedigils) A.205.1a9 983,182
TOTAL ¥ 12500475 $ 1,134 383

Amaunts reported for governmental activities in the statermeant of
nat assale are different because:

Capilal agsets used in govemmentsl activities are not
financial rascurces and, therefare, are not reported
in the fundsa

(Mher Iong-arm aszaie are noet available 1o pay for
cumrent-period expendilures end, theraefore, are
dalarred it the funds

Accrued interest payable included on the siatement of
net assats

Met pension agset included an 1he statemant of nel assets

Azsets and liabilities of the internal service fund reported
in the statement af nel assels are wsed 10 charge the
cost of insurance o individual funds and are not reported
in the funds

Debt issuance costs are deferred and amartized cn the
statermnent of nel assats

CHher post-employmnent benefits liapility included on the
satement of net aseets

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable,
tret of lesuanse cast and prertum) a2 not
due and payable in the corrent period and {hersfars
are not reparied in the funds

Mel aszels of governmental activilies

Eee Motes (o Financial Statements
Statement consistz of both facing pages



Community Talal
Chevalapment Capilat Govermemental

Bipck, (Srant Projects Trexler E-911 Bedi Grant Funds
§F 380,737 §F  GOT.H71 ] - § 400798 § - £ 15B15,035
- - - - - 791,832
5131 655 - - - - 5,131,655
- 148,224 - - - 148,224
452 302 - 714,515 - 2.000.,000 3,314,310
- 3,078 600 - - - 124,438
§ D185 554 $ 3.534505 F 714,515 ¥ 400,798 § 2,000,000 $ 25323560
KA N-T 571,854 11 65896 15820 2,000,300 4,144 272
5,204 - 24,417 9,562 - 1. B54. 425
3243800 1,826,136 703,172 694,341 3,550 5443
£1,990 - - - GE O7d
- - 714 515 1410371
152,336 3,400 - PG TET
364,402 2,401,430 1,463,790 707 423 2,000,000 _1 e ER
- 1,433 265 2 8584 3,327 - 2,279,425
2,321.292 . - - D304 474
- - {751,225) [309,852) .z 5,303,129
2,321,292 1,433,265 {749,275} [305,525) - 17 887 028

5 BAR5 GGG $ 3834 6ES % 714 515 & 400,795 & 2,000,000

83,736,123
595,856
[923,8977T)
798 514
3,059,030
2,308,077
[2,045,279)
[96 592, 970)
F 449214493
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CITY CF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENCED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Communify
Penngylvamia Development
Genearal Maotor Block Grant
REVENLUES:
Taxes £ 47030202 % L -
Licenses and permits 3459 268 -
Charges for services 5,612,324 -
Fires and forfeits 5492 504 - -
|nvestment earnings 580,936 41,864 -
Intergovernmental revenues 8,872 425 2.075034 6,861,743
Cther 1,644 718 59,221 64 045
Tokal revenues §7.901 377 2,179,118 H,925 788
EXPENDITURES:
Current,
Ganeral government ¥.926.339 - -
Public safety 44 T35 469 - -
Community development 5,128,557 - 5,353,655
Pukblic works 7,984 218 2,000,864 -
Health and sanitation 3.005 201 - -
Parks and recraation 1615067 - -
Debt service:
Principal -
interest - - -
FPaymant of Debt lssuance Costs 261,309 -
Capital outlay 2,754 311 _ -
Total expenditures 73,480,471 2,000,864 5,353,555
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {5,555 0894) 178,255 1,572,233
OTHER FINAMNCING SOURCES (LISES)
Isgsuance of Long Term Delbt &,5685,000 -
Payment to refunded bonds escrow agent {65,4410,000) - “
Bond Discount £,303 -
Capitat Lease Obligations 1,582 240 - -
Transfers in £ 54T B4 -
Transfers out (5,765, 390) _ (417.517)
Total other financing
sources and uses TS - (417,517
NET CHAMGE IN FUND BALANCES (5.932.391; 178,255 1,154,716
FUND BALAMNCE (DEF|CIT), BEGINNING 14 137,680 804 027 7,186,576
FUND BALANGE {DEFICIT), ENDING $ 6205189 § 883,182 §8321292

See Motes to Finangial Statements

Statement consists of both facing pages
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Debt Capital
Service Frojects

Trexler

E-811

Bedi Grant

Total
Governmeantal
Funds

252 472

- 3,180,473
21,656

1,414,825
22,323

36,033

1,852,287

2,000,000

3 47,038,202
3,459 268
5,864,798

592,504
758833

24 407 806
3,664,260

- 3,454,807

2,633,800 -
3,780,895 -

7 597,349

1,888,330

2,000,000

85,786,469

1,482,621

2,638,336

2,000,000

7,862,083
47,424,025
12,482 112

5 985,082

3,005,201

3,107 o8

2,633,800
3,780,895
261,308
10,351 880

_ 8460453 7,597,349

14592 621

2 638 556

2,000,000

101,003,865

(5,460,453 (4,142,742}

(55.373)

{750,228)

(15,217 400}

6,460,453 375,000

{375,000

662,837
(72,743}

6,460,453 375,000

{3,7687,742
5,201,607

..1375,000)
(430,373)
(318,902)

590,094

5,665,000

16,410,000}
B,309
1,562,940
12,046,134

__[7.630,650}

6,258,733

{160.132}
{146,493}

(8,857 657)

26,844,695

3 - § 1.433265

$ (748,275)

3

{306.625)

$ 17,887.028
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CITY OF ALLENTCWHN, PENNSYLVANIA

RECONCILIATION QF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOWVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Amaunts reported for governmenial aciivities in the statement of activities
areg different because:

Met change in fundg balances - fotal governmental funds $ (B957 657

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This 1s the
amount of capital assets recorded in the current period. G 381,234

Depreciation expense on capital assets 1s reported in the staterment of activities
but they do not require the use of current financial resources; therefore
depreciation expanse is not reported as expenditures in governmental funds, {3,9%1,966)

The net effect of various transactions invalving capital assefs {Le. disposals
and contnibutions) is to decrease nat agsets. (1.115,881)

Revenuas related to real estate taxes and daferred revenue in the statement
of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds, (331264}

Vacation expenses reported in the statemenl of activities that do not reguire the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. (77,282)

Activities of the internal service fund are reported as net axpense
in the statement of activities. (1,380,102]

Change in nel pension asset not reflected in the funds, (23,151

The issuance of long-term debt {e.g. bonds, [eases} provides current financial
resources to governmental funds. (6,665,000}

The repayment of prinzipal of lang term deht consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. 9.043,800

Governmental funds report the effect of 1Issuance costs, premiums discounts,
and similar items when debt (s first issued, whergas thase amounts are
deferred and amartized in the slatement of activities. 212.015

Accruad interest expense on long term debt s reported in the statement of
activities but does not require the use of current financial resources;
therefore accrued interest expense is not reported as expenditures in
govemmental funds. 213,628

Other post-employment benefits is reported in the statemant of
activities but does not require the use of current financial resources;

therefore the benefits are not reported as expenditures in govermmental funds  _ {2,046,279)
hange in net assets of govarmmental activities F{5738025}

See Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMEER. 21, 2008

Water Sewer
Fund Fund
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,472,132 5,118,005

Accounts receivable:
Wetered charges 4,498 110 2,740,399
Refuse collection - -
Other 18,419 222,147
Signatories 358,773 1,848 268
Total accounts receivable 4 871,302 4,810,814
Allowance for doubiful accounts 1,176,902 960, 165
MNet accounts receivable 3,694 400 3,850,648
Due from other funds - 1,826 136
Total current assets 5,166,532 10,794,780

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Land 2,585 840 28,450
Buildings 11,515,134 259,093 423
Larnd and building improvements 14,840 095 5,006,636
Machinery and equipment 19 406 423 12,543 500
Yehicles 2 823306 1,840,593
Distribution and caollection systems 41,401 416 10,849 926
Construction in progress 339,801 970,109
Total capital assets §2822 115 60,232,837
Accumulaied depreciation {33,228 304} {33,665,875)
Met capital assets 59,693 811 26,586,762
i.iiltthrear assets 1,361,119 670,608
Total honcurrent assets £1,054.930 27,237,370
TOTAL 86221462 § 38037 160

See notes to financial statements

Statement consists of both facing pages



Municipal Solid Waste Internal Service
Golf Course Fund Totals Fund
3 443,592 § 3236017 § 10,240,148 $ 5718521
- - 7,236 509
- 1,250,199 1,250,198 -
- - 240 566 -
- 2,205,041 -
- 1,250,198 10,832 315 -
- 95,852 2,732,819 -
- 554,347 8,198,395 -
- - 1,826,138 -
413,992 3.890.364 20,265 678 57185621
1,134,759 - 3,758,049 -
227 475 1,017 068 41,853,093 -
2,861,221 1,438,630 24,146 582 -
728,329 1436214 34,114 466 -
268,154 2.802 171 7.834 224 -
37 465 - 52,088,807 -
- - 1.310,010 -
5257403 6,654 081 165,106,236 -
{2,402 812} (3,811,040 {72,908,031) -
2 854 531 3,083,041 gz 198 205 -
- - 2031727 -
2 B54 5381 3,083 041 g4 229 832 -
$3268583 § 6973400 3 114.495610 18,521
{continued)
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENTS OF MET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMEER 31, 2008

W ater Sower
Fund Fund
T ETASSE
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable L 31513 ¥ 426 601
Accrued wages payahle 145,849 178,081
Accrued interest payable 188,820 141 611
Due o other funds 2,400,028 -
Capital leases payable 894,947 379,789
Claims liabitity - -
Other liabilities - -
Accrued Vacation 200 568 254 021
Current portion of long term debt 2,370,200 1,180,000
Total current liabilities 5,751 921 2,560,103
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Capital lease payahle 133,137 532 548
Bonds payable 15,832,200 11,055,000
Accrued vacation 683,338 80217
Total long-term {iabilties 16,028,873 11,667,765
Total liabilities 21,780,594 14,227 868
NET ASSETS :
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 41,283,327 13,419,425
Unrestricted 3,177,541 10,384,867
Total net assets 44,440,865 23,804 2492
TOTAL $ 66221462 § 38.032,160

See Motes to Financial Statements

Statemant consists of both facing pages
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Municipal Solid Waste Internal Service
Golf Course Fund Totals Fund

] 21,710 % 815,852 1,605 676 5 408,264
11,356 592.825 3858111 5,351
- - 340 431 -
- - 2,400,026 -
- - 474 736 -
. - - 2,244 630
468 76,978 77446 -
11,208 38,220 504 015 248
- - 3,550,200 -
44,742 883,875 8 340 641 2,658 491
- - 655 685 -
- - 26 887 200 -
3.535 12.070 158 162 -
3,535 12,070 27,712,047 -
48,281 895,845 37,052 688 2,659,491
2,854 581 3,(!85‘,'341 80,620,384 -
365,711 2,894 418 16,822 538 3,058,030
3,220,302 5,977,460 77,442 922 3,058,030
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

PROFRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2008

VWater Sewer Tunicipal
Fund Fund 5olf Course
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services,
Metered charges 212 2268 483 $ 7.366433 g -
Refuse collections - - -
Recycling - - -
Cther charges 1,799,707 7474618 1,161,865
Miscellaneous 140,283 194 807 116,758
Total operating revenues 14,122 453 15,035,854 1,278,723
OPERATING EXPEMNSES:
Personnel services 5,943 450 7,082,121 BRE 154
Utility services 552,829 748,008 17,653
Caontracted services 213,145 TET 647 108,278
Materials and supplies 529,265 936,698 211,501
Claims and benefits - - -
Depreciation and amaortization 2,082 338 1,807,184 148,780
Miscellaneous 323,317 651,882 1,717
Total cperating expenses 8724342 12066650 1,078,094
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 4398, 111 2,969,208 200,628
NONOFERATING {(EXPENSE) REVENUE:
Investment income 66,485 168,065 15175
Interest expense {838,837 {540,883 -
Gainf/Loss on Disposal of Capital Asseis - - -
Grants £4 183 102,199 3,566
Total nonoperating {expense)
revenues {808,169} {270,619} 18.741
INCOME BEFORE
TRANSFERS 3,589 8942 2,698,590 219,370
TRANSFERS (1.844.210) {1.772781) {228,805
MET INCOME (LOSS) 1.745.732 9258049 (9,435)
NMET ASSETS, BEGINNING 42,695,138 22573433 3,229 737
NMET ASSETS, ENDING $44,440,868 23,804,202 $ 3,220.302

See Notes to Financial Staterments

Statement consists of both facing pages
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Solid Waste tnternal Service
Fund Totals Fund
$ - % 19,582,808 $ -
12,632,578 12,632,578 -
748 763 T48 763 -
- 10,382 281 14,254,877
207 989 850 837 375,274
13,589,330 44.026,365 14 530,151
2,125,067 158,708,792
18,080 1,346,570 -
2 595 BG2 10,885 9863 -
202 273 2072737 -
- - 16,219,914
341,878 4,451,199 -
135,623 1,112 B39 -
12,508,814 35,377,900 16,219,914
1,080,516 8,648 465 11,589,763
149,229 388,954 254,235
- (1,479 7201 -
{18, BE6G6) {19,865} -
653,814 823,762 1,426
783,177 {276,870 255 881
1,863,693 8,371,595 {1.234,102)
{523,688} {4,369, 484) L (46,000
1,340,005 4,002,111 (1,380,102)
4 537 455 73,440,811 4438132
$ 5,G977.460 77442 922 $ 3.055.030
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENMNSYLYANIA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED CECEMBER 31, 2008

Viater Sawar Municipal
Fund Fund Golf Course
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES:
Receipts from cuslorners and users § 13802670 14 833 479 5 1.278.723
Fayments to suppliers for senvices (1,755,400 (3,129 968) (334, 882)
Fayments 1o employess 15,925 679 {7 008, 224) (685 7E8)
Met cash providad By (used in} oparating activities 6,001,501 4. 7E0.283 353.073
CASH FLOWS FROM HONCAPITAL
FINARCIMNG ACTIVITIES:
Operaling grants recaived G, 183 102,194 3 5ER
Transfarg 11,844,210} 1, 772.781) 1228805,
Mel cash provided by (used in} noncapital
financing activites __11,780,037) (1,670.583) (226.238)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FIMANCIHNG ACTIVITIES:
Apquisilion and conslrugtion of capilal assals 01,414 382} (Gad 414 GaE1T)
Advance fromdto aiher funds (484 305} (862 BEE) -
Principal paid on capital debt (2,805 200} (860,003 -
Fayments of obligations under capital leases {90 540} (402 958) -
Interest paid on leng term obligetians (83T 315} .. 655 E3) -
Mel cash used in capital and
related financing activities 12,432 B3Z} (3,215,883 {BEGE1T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES.
[nteres! recalved Af 485 168,065 15,175
MET INCREASE {DECREASE] IN CASH AND
CASH EGUVALENTS {1.054 733} 21,883 78,398
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGIMNING 2 826,015 &,088 122 335,554
CASH ARND CASH EQUIVALENTS, EMDING 1472132 115 055 i 443 952
RECOMCILIATICN OF OPERATIMNG IMCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH FROVIDED B8y QFERATING ACTIMITIES:
Cparating incomea {loss) ¥ 4398111 2,063,208 b 200,625
Adjusiments fo reconcile operating income {loss) to
netl cazh provided by (used in) operating aciivities:
Depreciation and amortization Z.0582 338 1,807,154 148 790
Acoounts receiveble {319, 7TES) (147 380 -
Argounis payable (56, B44Y {22 633 1,982
Accruad payrall 17,771 43 583 2,388
Oither lighilties - - 3,305
Total adjustmeants 1693480 1,781,074 157 444
MET CASH PROWIDED BY (USED By OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3 6.091 681 4,760,283 $ 358,073

Zee Motes to Financial Statements

Siatement conzists of both facing pages
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

Fension Trust Agency
Funds Funds
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5 8 406,401 8 797 705
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 133,751 -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 280 -
INYVESTMENTS, At fair value
Mutual Funds 84 479 692 -
TOTAL $ 94,020,104 9797705
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSET g
LIABILITIES:
Payroll tax liabilities ;3 - 1,202 498
Due to other governments - 8,495 207
Total liabilities - 9 797 708
NET ASSETS:
Feserved for pension benefits 94 020,104 -
TOTAL $ 94020104 _E_.?Q?,?Dﬁ

See Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Pension Trust

Funds
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer $ 9618294
Flan members 1,493,944
Total contributions 11,112,238

Investment income:
Net depreciation in fair value
of investments
Interest and dividends
Less investment expenses

Met investment income

Other income:
Miscellaneous

Total other income

Total additions

{36,403,593)
3,363,580
(150,731)

(33,190.764)

16,856

16,856

(22,081,870)

DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits paid to recipients 16,029,486
Administrative and other fees 48 397
Total deductions 16,077,883
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS {38,139,563)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING 132,159,667
NET ASSETS, ENDING % 094,020104

See Notes to Financial Statements



CiTY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting methods and procedures adeopted by the City of Allentown,
Pennsylvania {the "City"), conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, as applied to governmental entities. The following notes to
the financial statements are an integral part of the City's financial statements.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The City was incorporated in 1762 under the provisions of the constitution and
general statutes of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Cily is a third-class
city, as defined by state statutes. The City operates under a Home Rule Charter
form of government and provides a full range of services, including public safety,
roads, sanitation, health, culture and recreation, and general government services to
its approximately 107,000 residents. As required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements of the reporting
entity include those of the City {the primary government) and its component units.
The component units, discussed in Note 2, are inciuded in the City's reporting entity
because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City.

BasIs OF PRESENTATIGN

The government-wide financial statements (1.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information eon all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary govemment and its component units. Govermimental activities, which normally
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type aciivities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support. Likewise, the primary govermment is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function cor segment. Frogram
revenues include {1} charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
henefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and
{2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and cther items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as gerneral revenies.
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CIiTy OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Separate financial statements are provided for govermmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

MEASUREMENT Focus, Basis OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements impesed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be avaifable when they are collectible within the current’
period or soon encugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the govemment considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
B0 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liabilty is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures are recorded cnly when payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible io accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available onfy when cash is received by the government.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
GENERAL FUND - is used to account for all financial transactions applicable to the
general operations of the City except for those required to be accounted for in

ancther fund.

PENNSYLVANIA MOTOR FUND - is used to account for the financial activity of the
City's liquid fuels tax allocation from the Commaonwealth of Pennsylvania.

CoMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND - is used to account for the financial

activity of the City's Community Development Block Grant Program and other
urban renewal and improvement grants.
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYELVANIA
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEBRT SERVICE FUND - is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, general leng-term bonds and other debt principal, interest and
related costs.

CAFPITAL PrOJECTS FunND - is used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisitiocn or construction of major capital facilities.

TREXLER FUND - is used for maintenance, development and extension of the City's
park system. The Trexier Fund is a special revenue fund and the use of funds is
specified by the grantcr.

E-911 FUND - is used to account for the revenues received and eligible costs
incurred by the City in the establishment, upgrading, expanding and operation of
its emergency communications system for the purpose of providing emergency
communications under the Pennsylvania Public Safety Emergency Telephone Act,
Act 78, Seclion 8 (as amended).

Beni GRanNT - Brownfieid's Economic Development Initiative Grant - is used to
account for the funds received from the Depariment of Housing and Urban
Development for the Exide Battery site project.

The City reports five major proprietary funds:

WATER FUND - is used to account for all costs incurred in the collection, treatment
and distribution of water for consumption, and is operated in a manner similar to a
private business enterprise to be self-supporting.

SEWER FunD - is used to account for the cperation and maintenance of the
sanitary sewage treatment plant, and is operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise and is intended to be self-supporting.

Municipal GoOLF Course FUND - is used to account for the operation and
maintenance of the 18-hole Allentown Municipal Golf Course, and is operated in a
manner similar to a private business enterprise and is intended to Dbe
self-supporting.

S0oLID WASTE FUND - is used to account for the administration of the collection and
disposal of municipal waste and recyclables in the City, and is operated in a
manner similar to a private business enterprise and is intended to be
self-supporting.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - is used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency fo other departments or agencies of the
governmental unit on a cost-reimbursement basis for the City's self-insurance
program and externally administered insurance programs.
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Cimy OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City's Fiduciary Fund accounts for the Pensicn Trust Fund and Agency Fund:

PENSION TRUST FUND - is used to account for pension benefits for employees. The
principal revenue sources for this fund are employer and employee contributions.
The Pension Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as
proprietary funds since capital maintenance is critical. The Pension Trust Fund
accounts for the City's three defined benefit pensicn plans, officers and
employees, policemen and firemen.

AGENCY FUND - is used to account for funds held in escrow for other parties. The
Agency Fund is custodial in nature {assets equal liabilities) and does not involve
measurement of results of operations. The Agency Fund accounts for the earned
income taxes, payroll withholdings and tax collections frem the Allentown School
District and the City.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to
December 1, 1989 generally are followed in boih the government-wide and fund
financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict
quidance of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have
the option of following subsequent private-secior guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject {o this same limitation. The City has elected not
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
govemment-wide financial statements. Exceptions to the rule are payments to the
internal services fund for risk management activities where the amounts charged are
reasonably equivalent in value to services provided. Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs of various functions.

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services or privileges provided, and operating grants and contributions.
Intemally dedicated rescurces are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operafing revenues and expenses from nonoperating
iterms. Operating revenues and expenses generally resuit from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal
cngoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise fund are
charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include
the cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are repcorted as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TQO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted rescurces as they are needed.

CaASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
depcsits and shori-term investments with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition. Cash of all funds, except pension trust and certain
enterprise and special revenue funds, is maintained in a cash and investment pool.
Interest earnings, as well as gains and losses, are allccated to funds based on the
average daily balances of funds invested in the poel. The balance recorded as cash
and cash equivalents in each fund type is principally the allocation of the pooled cash
balance. The balance recorded as investments in each fund type, except thoss in
pension trust funds, is principally the allocation of the pooled investment balance.
Investments are carried at fair vaiue. Securities traded on a national or infernational
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.
mvestments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
values. Insurance holdings, if any, are valued at reported contract values.
Investments of the discretely presented component units are carried at cost, which
does net differ matertally from fair value.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all cash accounts,
which are not subject o withdrawal restrictions or penalties, and all highly-ligquid
investments purchases with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

The City is authorized to make investments as defined in the Pennsylvania Third
Class City Code and the Home Rule Charter. Authorized types of investments
include the following:

a. United States Treasury Bills,

b. Short-term obligations of the United States Government or its agencies or
instrumentalities.

¢. Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits, other than cerificates of
deposit, or share accounts of institutions insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or similar agencies to the extent that such accounts are
so insured, and for any amounts above the insured maximum, provided that
approved collateral as provided by law therefore is pledged by the depository.
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CITy OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLWVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

d. Obligations of the United States Gowvernment or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of
America, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth of
Fennsylvania, or of any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith
and credit of the political subdivision.

e. Shares of an investment company registered under the Investment Company
Act of 1840, whose shares are registered under the Securities Act of 1933,
provided that the only investments of that company are in the authorized
investments for City funds listed above.

f. Certificates of deposit purchased from institutions insured by the Federal
Deposit insurance Corporation or similar agencies to the extent that such
accounts are so insured.

Investments of pension trust funds are placed pursuant to guidelines established by
the respective pension boards. Investments of component units are transacted
pursuant to guidelines established by the respective Boards of Directors.

INTERNAL BALANCES

Internal balances arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds
affected in the period in which transactions are executed.

RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activity between funds that are representative of fending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end cf the fiscal year is referred to as either "due toffrom other
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/ffrom cother funds”
{i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as "due toffrom other funds.”

All property tax and per capita receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectibles. The property tax and per capita receivable allowance is calculated
based on collection history and was approximately $ 1,883,000 at December 31,
2008.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-cut (FIFO) method. The costs of
governmental fund type inventories are rendered as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased. The City has determined that any unused materials
and supplies on hand at December 31, 2008 are immaterial.
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated
fair value on the date of donation. The City maintains a capitalization threshoid of
$ 5,000 for all capital assets.

General infrastructure assets consist of brdges, traffic lights and signals, streets and
streetlights, and storm sewers and are reported at estimated historical cost using
deflated replacement cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Collections of art, historical artifacts and similar items have been capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

YEARS

Buildings and improvements 35-80

Machinery and equipment 2-25

Vehicles 2-10
Reservoirs and water and sewer distribution

and collection systems 899

Infrastructure 10-89

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Net assets are restricted by laws or regulations of other governments.
COMPENSATED ABSENCES

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on
their length of employment. Vacation leave carried by employees varies depending
upon collective bargaining agreements and City policy. Accumulated sick leave may
be compensated to employees at the rate of § 10 to § 20 per day, depending upon
employees' classification, up to 125 days upon retiremeit.
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CITy OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
MOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED REVENUES

Deferred revenues are those where asset recognition criteria have been met, but for
which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Such amounts are
measurable but are not available. Deferred revenue may also result from revenues
being collected in advance of the fiscal year to which they apply or in advance of
their legal due date.

BoOND DISCCUNTS AND ISSUANCE COSTS

Bond discounts and issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the term of the
bonds using the bond outstanding method which approximates the interest method.
Bond discounts are deducted from the bonds outstanding, and issuance costs are
presented as other assets.

PROPERTY TAXES

Significant dates on the City's property tax calendar are as follows:
Levy date: February 1

Due dates: Net by April 5
Gross by June 5 or by installmenis due April 15, May 15,

June 15 and July 158
Lien date: December 31

Property taxes not being paid in installments become delinquent on June 6. The City
continues to collect delinquent property taxes up to December 31 of the current year.
At that time, all unpaid school and real estate taxes are certified to Portnoff Law
Associates for further collection and possible iax sales over an additional 30-month

period.
The 2008 tax levy was 17.52 mills.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

As a result of its operations, the City affects a variety of transactions between funds
to finance operations. Accordingly, to the extent that certain interfund transactions
have not been paid or received as of December 31, 2008, appropriate interfund
receivables or payables have been established.
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Cimy OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENLES

Intergovernmental revenues represent revenues received from the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania and federal agencies generally to fund specific programs. Awards
made on the basis of entittement periocds are recorded as intergovernmental
revenues when entitlement occurs and the revenues are measurable and available.
Reimbursement type grants are recorded as revenues when the related expenditures
or expenses are incurred. The amount recorded as due from other governments
consists primarily of amounts due from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

SELF-INSURANCE

The City is self-insured for workers' compensation, property, casualty, automabile
and general liability claim losses. At December 31, 2008, the City carried excess
loss insurance policies which limited its liability to $ 450,000 per occurrence for
workers' compensation, $ 100,000 per occurrence for property and flood loss, and
$ 10,000 per occurrence for employee theft. Governmental and proprietary funds
are charged based on historical oss palterns. These charges are reimbursed
through the various funds. The City's funds reported loss claims based upon the
evaluation of an independent claims manager. The City maintains the integrity of
funds so provided, together with earnings thereon, in the Risk Management Intemal
Service Fund sclely for purposes of liquidating claims incurred. Under its
self-insurance  plan, the City accrues the estimated expense of workers'
compensation, property, casualty and general liability claim costs based on claims
filed subsequent to year end, and an additicnal amount for incurred but not yet
reported claims based on prior experience. An accrual for such costs of $ 2,244,630
is included in the accompanying financial statements. Claim payments based on
actual claims ultimately filed could differ materially from these estimates. Settled
claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the
past four years.

Use OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America reguires management tc make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reperted amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

- &0 -



Crey OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLWANIA
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. REPORTING ENTITY

In accordance with GASEB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as
amended by GASB Statement No. 38, the City has evaluated all related entities
(authorities, commissions and affiliates) for the possible inclusion in the financial
reporting entity.

The component units discussed below are included in the City's reporting entity
because of the significance of financial and operational relationships within the City.
These component units have been included in the financial reporting entity as discretely
presented component units.

ALLENTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

The Allentown Redevelopment Authorlty (the "Authority™), an entity legally separate
from the City, is governed by a board appointed by the Mayor and administers the
Community Development Block Grant Program and other urban renewal and
improvement grants,

ALLENTOWN Economic DEVELOPMENT CCORPORATION

Allentown Economic Development Corporation ("AEDC™), an entity legally separate
from the City, is governed by a board, which is elected by the membership of AEDC,
in addition tc the Mayor, a City Council member, the City Director of Economic
Development and the County Executive of Lehigh County. lts purpose is to
encourage economic development in the City. AEDC provides technical and
financial assistance to existing business and fosters the attraction of new commerce
inte the City. The City has guaranteed the installmant debt of AEDC.

ALLENTOWN PARKING AUTHORITY

The Allentown Parking Authority {the "Authority") is a municipal authority organized
pursuant to the Parking Authority Act of 1947 of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
The Authority’s function is to develop, administer and enforce an efficient system of
off-street and on-street parking in the City. The Authority is governed by a board
appointed by the Mayor. The City has guaranteed the debt issuance of the Authority.

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Condensed financiai statements are provided as supplemental information for each
of the discretely presented component units mentioned above. Complete financial

statements of the individual component units can be obtained directly from the Office
cf the City Treasurer.
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CiTy OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANLA
NOTES To FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

ALLEMTOWN
ALLENTOWN ECONDMIC ALLENTOWN
REDEVELOPMENT DEVELOFPMENT PARKING
AUTHOR|TY CORPORATION*  AUTHORITY TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalentz L 5B5.7458 $ 1,268,531 £ 1405867 £ 3833508
Cash and cash eguivalents,
rastrictad - 1,518,853 143 1,518,002
Investment, cerificate of
deposit - - 1,257,313 1,257,313
Accounts receivable, net 3525 42877 245984 BO2 186
Due from other governmenls 61,090 - - 61,990
Cther assets - 1,026,042 666,832 1,682,874
Camtal assela, net 1 569 163 28 216 355 44 BR7 301 T2 752 823
Tolal asseats 2 2200438 £ 31070612 & 48 543 545 & 81.814 794
LIAEILITIES
Accounts payable 5 30,474 ¥ 87,080 £ 265134 £ 3825398
Long-term debt - 8,514 455 19,497 122 2611 581
Cther liabilities 27 498 325873 135,147 913 13,501 254
Tatal liabillies AT AT2 B E27 412 32 810,169 389 BO5 553
MET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 1,560, 183 19,501,900 23,762 853 44 834 016
Unrestricted 573301 4,641 600 (8,128,576} (2814 775}
Total net assets 2,142 A4 24 143 400 16633377 41,818,241
Total lighilties and
net agsets £ 2200 435 £ 310706892 & 48543 545 = 81.614 704

* Presented as of June 30, 2008,
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CITY OF ALLENTOWHN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TQ FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Frogram revenues:
Charges for services
Grants

General revenues;
Investment income
Cither income

Total revenues
Expen=zes:
Cperating and other expanses
Depreciation and amonization
Interest expense
Gain ([oss) on disposal of
assets
Total expenses
Met income
Met azzets, beginning of year

Met azsets, and of year

* Fresented as of June 30, 2008,

ALLENTOWN
REDEVELOPMENT

% -
1,147,634

5,328
1,505,924

2 (23]

1476425

1,476,428

1,180,471

951,893

—_— T

$ 2142464
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ALLENTOWN
ECONOMIC ALLENTOWN
DEVELOPMENT PARKING
CORFORATION*  AUTHORITY TOTAL
§ 1,082,843 $ 6123520 5 7,186,163
5,114,683 19,887 8,252,214
152,264 85,788 241,410
~ - 106,751 1,812 675
6,220,620 6,335,946 15,322 462
2,304,262 2,802,617 8,763,304
269,509 1,575,842 1,845,751
324,808 960,529 1,285,427
31,448 (7.112) 24,334
3020515 5421 878 0,918,816
3,309,105 914.070 5,403 646
20,834 295 14,718.307 36,615 595



City OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLYANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The carrying amounts of cash and investments at December 31, 2008 consist of the

following:
Cash and cash equivalents F 41535201
Investments 03 926 303

$136,461.504
RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS/BALANCE SHEETS

Cash and cash equivalents:

Governmental $ 16,534 583
Business-type 57596112
Fiduciary 19,204 106
41,535,201
Investments:

Governmental 5002 577
Business-type 4,444 034
Fiduciary 84 478 692
893 826 303

$135,461,504

CasH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The City's available cash is invested in demand deposit accounts, money market
funds and cash held in investment accounts.

The City has custodial credit risk on cash deposits. This is the risk that in the event
of a financial institution failure, the City's deposits may not be returned. The City has
a deposit policy for custodial risk that requires depository institutions to pledge
securities as collateral for deposits that exceed depository insurance.

At December 31, 2008, the carrying amounts of the City's bank deposits were
$ 41,535,201 and the bank balances were $§ 45,287 379, of which § 44,287,379 was
exposed to custodial risk because it was not covered by Federal Depository
Insurance.
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INVESTMENTS

As of December 31, 2008, the City's investments were comprised of the following:

Certificate of deposit 3 503,284
mMutual funds 84,479 892
Debt securities 8843 327

Total 3 93,926,303

As of December 31, 2008, the City had the following investments in debt securities:

Daebt Security Maturlties {in Years}

Less than More than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 -5 . 610 10 Rating
United States
Treasury Notes $ 5080919 & 71,249 52923038 3 2066582 % - MIA
United Stales
Government agency S&P's AAL
securities 402 495 £.009 44 183 346 425 5,786 WMoody's Aaa
S4F's AAA
Corporate bonds 2.881.721 1,023,440 1,858,281 - - Moody's Aaa
S&P's AAA
Hher fixed income 598 182 5398 182 - - - Moody's Aaa
Total debt
securities § 94943327 $ 1698970 § 4825562 413007 % 5788
INTEREST RATE RISK

The City does not have a formal investment paolicy for its funds that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates.

The City's pension plans have a formal investment policy that has set a 10-year

investment herizon and targets fixed income investments te be no more than 40% of
the investment portfolic.
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CREDIT RisK

The City's investments are limited to those permitted in the Pennsylvania Third Class
City Code and the Home Rule Charter as detailed in Note 1.

The City's pension plans have a formal investment policy that seeks to minimize the
risk of investment losses by requiring diversification of the investment portfolio
targeted at 51% domestic equities, 12% international equities, 5% real estate and
32% fixed income.

CusTDDIAL CREDIT RISK

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. As of
December 31, 2008, $ 93,423,019 of the City's investments are held by the
investment's counterparty, not in the name of the City.

COMPONENT UNITS” CUSTCDIAL CREDIT RisK - DEPOSITS

The City's component units have custodial credit risk on cash deposits. Custodial
credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the deposits of the City's
component units will not be returned. The carrying amounts of the City's component
units bank deposits were § 6,714,672 and the bank balances were $ 6,687,077, of
which § 5 291,708 was exposed to custodial risk because it was not covered by
Federal Depository Insurance,
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Activity in the capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2008 is as follows:

Govemmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Froperty held for development
Art
Construction in progress

Total capital assets nof being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Land and building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Land and butlding improvements
Machinery and equipment
Wehicles
Infrastructure

Total accurmulated depreciation

Totat capital assets being
depreciated. net

Governmental aclivities capital assets, net

January 1, Dacember 31,
2008 Additions Disposals 2008
$ 5400045 3 - - 5 B 409845
705,431 4 520 - 08,951
o8 166 - - 95 166
11,852 643 3,463 366 {1.161102} 14,164 S07
21.063 185 2467 BEG {1,161 102} £3..369.950
22,892 B25 - - 22,892 825
19,344 219 759 059 - 20103278
14,905 582 1,258,385 {53,804} 16,114,164
14,178,022 2,115,944 {238,280} 16,055 626
63,166,135 - - 63,166 135
134,490 884 4133 389 (282 D84} 138,332 183
15,112,009 583 022 - 15,685.031
8,260,047 820,105 - 10,080, 152
11,047,230 T2 597 {16,038) 11,803,781
12,279,231 883472 (224,898 12,937 807
28462 063 987 1 - 27 449 254
4. 160,580 4,046 387 240 032) 77 966,035
60330 304 87 002 {£1.151 60 366.154
28 488 F 55548388 5 (1.212254) § 83,736.123
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Business-type activiies:
Capital assets not being depreciated.
Land
Construction in prograss

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Land and building improvements
Machinery and eguipment
Vehicles
Distribution and collection systems

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings
Land and building improvemeants
Machinery and eguipment
Yehicles
Digtribution and collection eystems

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, nat
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January 1, December 31,
2008 Additions Disposals 2008
$ 37ha4s % - - ¥ 3,759048
1,060,254 1,331,834 (1.082118) 1.319.010
4,819,343 1,331,834 (1082118 5 069,059
41 853.098 - - 41,853 098
23,884 758 161,824 - 24,148 582
33,484, 4565 636,104 {16,004) 34 114 466
T,a61,061 732 567 {255 404) 7,834,224
51284 160 830 148 (35501} 52 08B 207
157.987 533 2360643 {310,854) 160,037 177
21,255,043 1,128,408 - 22 383 451
TA77 B25 Ba5 722 8,173 348
21,021,512 1,579 568 - 22 601,081
G.026,703 397 327 {255 634} 5,168 3096
13.085 074 532183 (35,502% 13.581,755
S8 865 853 4 .333.209 {791,136} 72,8908 031
289121 575 {1 872 86} (19,863) E7 120,146
593940018 § (640732) §(1,101,981) $.82198205



CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General government $ 454815
Public safety 1,044 807
Public works 1,889 818
Health 40,025
Parks and recreation 495 675
Community development and planning 85 726

Total 5 3.891.866

5. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2003 is as follows:

Receivable Payahble
Fund Fund Purpose for Balance
General Traxler Short-term borrowing
CDBG Sher-term borrowingfgrant
E-811 Short-term borrowing

Total due to General Fund
Capital Projects Water Shor-term borrowing
E-311 Capital Froject Expenditures
Total due to Capital Projects
Sewer Capital Short-term borrowing
Total due to Sewer Fund
Total

Inter-fund balances represent short-term borrowing between funds.
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Amount

$ 703172
326,800

15,767

1,045 839
2,400,026

675,574
3078600
1,826,136

—_— e e —

1.826.136

P 5850675




City OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. INDIVIDUAL FUND INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended 12/31/08, consisted of the following:

___ Transfer In; e
General Debt Service Capital
Fund Fund Projects E-911 Fung Total
Transfers Out:
General 3 - $ 6102553 L - ¥ 662 237 & 6,765,390
CDBRG ahd BeZ2 B, B55 - - 417,517
Trexler - - 375,000 - 375,000
E-311 g 8588 62 855 - - 72,743
Risk 485 000 - - - 46 000
Water 844 210 - - - 1.844 210
Sewer 1647 071 126,710 - - 1,772 781
Solid Waste 523 688 - - - 523,688
solf 122,325 106 480 - - 228 805
Tatal d 4547844 § €460453 B 375000 $ 662837

The maijority of interfund fransfers were for recurring annual transfers.  Transfers
totaling $ 3,893,182 were made to the General Fund for reimbursement of services
rendered by the General Fund for other operating funds. A transfer totaling
$ 375.000 was made to Capital Projects for enhancement of the park system. A
transfer from the General Fund fo the E-211 Fund was made to cover ineligible
expenses as required by the Pennsylvania Public Safety Emergency Telephone Act.

Transfers from the funds were alsc made to the Debt Service Fund to cover the debt
requirement. Transfers were also made fo the General Fund from the Water and
Sewer Funds for Hemeland Security and also from the CDBG Fund for
reimbursement of salaries.

7. PENSION PLANS
PLAN DESCRIPTIONS

The City has three single employer defined benefit pension plans covering
Folicemen, Firemen and certain non-uniformed employees (Officers and Employees
Plan}. The Plans provide for retirement, digability, vested and death benefits to plan
members and their beneficiaries. Cost of living adjustments are provided at the
discretion of the Policemen, Firemen, and Cfficers and Employees Retirement
Boards. All full-time City employees hired prior to June 8, 1876 are eligible to
participate in these Plans. The City's three single employer pension plans do not
issue separate financial statements.
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The City also participates in a pension plan administered by the Pennsylvania
Municipal Retirement System {PMRS). The fuli-time non-uniformed City employees
hired after June 8, 1976 are eligible to participate in the PMRS Plan. PMRS is an
agent muitiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for participating municipal pension plans.
PMRS issues a separate Comprebensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which
may be obtained by writing to the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirernent System,
P. Q. Box 1185, Harrisburg, PA 17108-1185 or by cailing 1-800-622-7968. Benefits
and refunds of the Plans are recognized when due and payable with the terms of
each Plan. The following is a statement of fiduciary net assets and statement of
changes in fiduciary net assets for the City's three single employer defined benefit
plans:

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS

All investments of the pensgion plans are reported at fair value based on guoted
market values. Investments that do not have an established market vaiue are
reported at estimated fair value, insurance heldings, if any, are valued at reported
coniract values.

Oificers and Total
Employees' Folicemen's Firemen's Pension Trust

Pensign Fund Pengion Fund Pansign Fund Funds

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS k] 1066443 £ 5 rE54874 T 2554079 $ 9.406401
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 29 160 bl 280
OTHER RECEIVABLE - - 133,751 133.751
INYESTMENTS, at Fair value 14 758 TH6 A0 755 673 285 965 263 34 479 552
NMET ASSETS, reserved for

pension banefils § 15828778 E46541712 531653164  § 04020104
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ADDITIOMNS:
Coniributions;
Employer
Plan members
Total contributions
Investment earnings:
MNet depreciation in fair value
of investrments
Inlerest and dividends
Less investment expenses
Met investrnent earnings
Chher income, miscellaneous
Total addilions
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefils paid ko recipients
Administralive and other fees
Tolal deductiorns
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINMNING

MET ASSETS, ENDING

Otficers and Fotal
Employzes’ Folicemean’s Firemen's Fension Trusl
Fension Fund Pensipn Fund  Pension Fund Funds
5 35527 F 6022835 § 3240080 F 98618204
20,788 885,801 587 355 1,493 844
376,087 6,908,728 3,827 435 11,112 238
(B.516,918) (17,821,742} (12,264 933) {36,403,593)
07,259 1.625,734 1,130 567 3,363,560
{35,832} [54.284) (50,515 (150.731)
(6045 581} {15,060 292} (11.184.881) (33 1%.764)
3,394 B 526 3.838 16.858
(5,866 130 {9,042 030} {7,353,510 (22 061,670
2,908 898 8,584,748 4,537,854 16,028,405
15,088 15,101 16.187 48.397
2,822 895 8,800,847 4,554 051 16,077,853
{6,588,125) (17,642 877 (11,907 5613 (33,1383 563
24 414 383 B4.184 580 43,560,725 132,159,667
§ 15825278 § 46541717 & 633164 5 4020104
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The foliowing table provides information concerning types of coveraed employees and
benefit provisions for each of the Plans. Benefit provisions and their amendments
are authorized by the separate Pension Boards for the Policemen, Firemen, and
Officers and Employees plans and by Pennsylvania State Act 15 for the PMRS Plan.

Officers ang
Emplovees Policemen Firamen PMRES
All fulltime Al fulltime Al full-time
members of members of employeaes
Closed the Folice the Fire not previously
Covered Employees 8/8/76 Faorce Depanrnent covered
Mumber of active plan
members 7 164 137 574
Mumber of retirees and
beanaficiaries
receiving benefite 243 247 162 208
Tarminated employeses
entitted to defarrad
benefits - - - 26

CONTRIBUTIONS

Pennsylvania Act 205 of 1984, the Municipal Pension Plan Funding Standard and
Recovery Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania {as amended) {Act 205)
requires that annual confributions be based upon the Minimum Municipal Obligation
(MMQ), which is based on the Plans' biannual actuarial valuation. According to
Act 2058, actuarial valuations may be made biennial, and the most recent valuation
for alt of the City's Flans was completed as of January 2007. The MMO includes the
normal cost, estimated administrative expenses and an amortization of the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability, less estimated member contributions, and a credit equal to
10% of the excess (if any) of the actuarial value of assets over the actuarial accrued
liability. The state provides an allocation of funds which must be used for pension
funding. Any financial requirements established by the MMO which exceed state
and member contributions must be funded by the employer.
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Policemen and Firemen are reguired to coniribute 5% of covered payroll to their
respective pension plans. The Officers and Employees Plan requires 3.5% of
covered payroll for single coverage. The PMRS Plan requires contributions of 7.5%
from plan participants. These contributions are governed by the Plans' governing
ordinances and collective bargaining agreements. Administrative costs, which may
include but are not limited to investment management fees and actuarial services,
are charged to the Plans and funded through the MMO and/or invesiment earnings.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset - The City's annual pension cost (APC)
and net pension asset for the City's Policemen, Firemen, and Officers and
Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plans for the current year were as follows:

Officers and

Employees Folicemen Firemen
Annual required contribution {MMO) $ 355279 S 6022835 3 3,108,328
Interest on net pension assat f2,492) (40,714) {22,527}
Adjustment to annual required contribution 3,369 55,054 30,481
Annual pension cost 356,156 6,037,275 3.114 263
Contributions made 355,279 6,022,935 3,106,329
Decrease in nat pension asset 877 14,340 7,934
Net pension (asset), beginning of year (31,146} {508,928) (281,552)
Met pension (asset), end of year % (30268 § {494 588 § (273.658)
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—————————————— Three-Year Trend Information---------«=«---

Percentags Met
Annual Pension of APC Fension
Fiscal Year Cost {APC) Contributed Asset
Officers and 124315086 3 655 100.0% F 32,049
Employees 1231407 529778 899.8% 31,146
12431408 I5B 156 99.8% 30,269
Paoiicemean 12/34706 3,021,215 99.7% 523,681
1243107 5,856 082 g99.58% 508,928
12/31/08 6,037 275 09 8% 494 H58
Firemen 12731108 1,247,280 94 5% 289,756
1221407 3,057 491 99.7% 281,592
12/31/08 3,114,283 99.7% 273 658
Fannzylvania
Municipal 12431706 4445 843 100.0% -
Retirerment 12/31/07 1,263 532 100.0% -
Plan 12/31/08 1,374 389 100.0% -

The annual required contribution for each of the Plans for the current year was
determined as part of the January 1, 2007 actuarial valuation using the entry age
normal cost method. The actuarial assumptions included {a) investment rate of
return of 8% for the three City Plans and 6% for the State (PMRS) Plan and
{b) projected salary increases of 5% per year for City Plans and 52% for PMRS
Plan, including an inflation component of 3.5% for the PMRS Plan. The actuarial
value of assets was based on market value plus end of the year accrual adjustrments,
if any. The PMRS Plan's actuarial accrued liability was fully funded at January 1,
2008,

INVESTMENTS THAT REPRESENT FIVE PERCENT
oR More OF PLanN NET ASSETS

At December 31, 2008, none of the Plans had investments in any one organization
which represented five percent or more of the plan net assets.
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UNFUNDED ACTUARIAL LIABILITY

The City's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar of
projected payroll, and the period is calculated every valuation. The remaining
amoartization period ranges from 13 to 15 years for the Cfficers and Employees Plan,
4 to 26 years for the Policemen Plan and 6 to 26 years for the Firemen Plan.

FUNBED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS!

The funded status of the City's Pension Funds as of January 1, 2007, the most
recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows:

ACTUARIAL
ACCRUED UAALAAAL)
ACTUARIAL LIaBILITY LNFUNDED AS A
WALUE OF {AAL) - AAL FUNDED COVERED PERCENTAGE
ASSETS ENTRY AGE fUIAAL) RATIO PayROLL OF COVERED
FEH 8] (B-A} {#/B) ] EAYROLL
Officers and
Employees
Plan $21.982132 525711360 $ 3720238 B550% $ 327187 1,139.758%
Folicemen's

Pension Fund 64,733,840 114,801,280 50,067 450 5B.389% 10,128,336 484 43%

Firemen's
Penszion Fund
Flar 43 525113 64 764,292 21,239,179 67.21% 7,350,267 288.96%

Pennsylvania

Municipal

Retiremant

System Plan 101,184 335 87,426,679 {13,757.656) 115.74% 24,003 648 (57.31)%
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8. LoNG-TERM DEBT

The City issues notes payable and general obligation bonds to finance the capital
projects of the City. At December 31, 2008, general long-term debt cobligations of the
City's governmental activities were as follows:

Edlance Balance
Cutstanding Cutstanding
January 1, Prlncigal Decamber 31, Cumrent
2008 Addrions Reductions Refunded 2038 Bgrinn

Motes and General

Dhillgation Bonds

1993 Genersl Obligation Bonds.
5.70% interest, due in 2010 § 3z2so00 % - ¥ - % - 5 325000 % 160,000

1893 General Chligaton
Refunding  Bonde,  5.B65%
interast, due in 2010 1,825,000 - - - 1528000 740,000

1897 General Obligation Bonds,
4450 1o 500%  interest,
payable in inceeasing annual
instaliments of § 315000 in
200% to $365,000 in 2012 1,360,000 “ . 1,360,000 - -

1998 Ganeral Gbligation Bonds,

400% ¢ 5.00%  Interest.

payable in wvarying annual

ingtallments of $ 420,000 in

200% to $290,000 in 2021 £ 080,000 - - 5,050,000 . n

2001 General Ohligaton Bond,
280% to 5.00% interest, serial
porign payabla  in warying
arnual installments of § 355,000
in 2009 Lo 290,000 in 2021 4,350.000 - - - 4,360,000 355,000

2003 General Obligation Bond,
200% o 5.50% interast, sadial
poricn  payshie 0 increasmg
annual installments of § 535,000
in 2008 {a § 725,000 in 2022 6,555,000 - - . 5,555,000 -
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Balance Balance
Cwistanding Culstanding
Motes and General January 1, Principal December 31, Current
Obligalion Bonds 2008 Addrtions Redurtions Refunded 2008 Paricn

2004 Genetal Ohilgatien Penslon
Bond, 1.3t% to 5.25% interest,
seriaf portion payable  in
Inereasing  annual  Installments
of SE50000 0 2005 1%
F 226000000 2034 % 32.0z0000 % - 3 GRS000 % - $ 31325000 %

2004 Taxable General Obligation
Band, 1.31% 1o 4.44% interest,
serlal portlon payable  In
increasing annual installments
of %1,800000 in 20058 to
£ 2,405,000 2014 2,608 000 - 1.334,000 - 1,273,000 15,000

2004 Tax-Exempt General
Ohbligation  Bond, 1.00% tio
H5.00% interesi, serial portion
payahle in increasing annual
installments of $230,000 n
2005 to 3 490,000 in 2324 6,085,000 - 255,000 - 5,830,000 260,000

2008 Mote, 3.85% interest, varying
phnclpal annual payments of
F215400 to 5286400 due in
2014 1,788,400 - 226,800 - 1,661,600 238,800

2006 Guarantesd Lease Ravenusa
Note. 5.84% o 2016, then
2.40%, payable in  annuoal
nstallments of $6%3750 o
2016, then § 1,003,820 to 2031 8976668 - 117000 - 9,739 665 123,800

2007 Taxable General Obligalion
Mote, semiannual accrelion o
produce  yields of GBEN I
§.899%, payable in increasing
installments of 52075000 in
20211 § 7.040,000 [n 2036 14,773,581 - . - 14 773,981 -

2007 Tarahle General Obhgaion
Mote, 362% to 5.77%, payable
in varying annual instaliments of
5500 in 2008 10 545020 in
2021 7,980,000 - 5,000 - 7,535,000 30.0ag
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Balance Ralange
Culstanding Cutstanding
Hotes and Genarat January 1, Principal December 31, Current
Obligation Baonds 2068 Addilions Reduclions Relunged 2008 Partion
2008 Taxable General
Obligation Bond, 3.00% to
3T%, payabla in warying
annual installments of $ 5,000
in 2008 ta § 315,000 in 2013 5 - $ 5455000 F BDO0  § . 3 EEE0000 § 655000
Totat Motas and Saneral
Cbligaion Bonds 44, 514 049 G,66E5.000 2,533,800 5,410,000 87 935 248 2,575,600
Discount an bond issuance 1,162 524 - 71.864 - 1,090 656 -
Total 595478579 & GE6E00C S 2 70AARR 5 6410000 §. 83025805 5 2575600
At December 31, 2008, the business-type activities’ long-term debt consisted of the
following:
Balange Balance
Cutstanding Clutslanding
Revers Notes January 1, Pringipal Cacamber 31, Currenl
and Bonds 2008 Additions Redustions Eafunded 2008 Pertion
1963 uaranteed Water
Fevenue  Bongds, o Ba%
intarast, one  ingtallment of
5 Y75,000 due in 2010 b FTE000 § - & - - F Fra.000 % a7, 000
1983 Guaranteed WWater
Fevenue Refunding Bonds,
585% interest, instaliment of
8 230,090 due [n 2010 330,000 . - - 336,000 1640.000
1983 Guaraniead Sewar
Revenue Bonds, h65%
interest. ome insfallment of
5 £45,000 duz in 2010 545 000 . - - E45,000 315.000
18497 Guarantead Water
Revenue Bondz,  Second
Zeres, 455% to0  5.00%
int2rest, seria! porion payeble
in varying annuel inslallmens
of S20000 in 2005 o

F208,0000n 2012 355,000 - - 235,000 - -

1947 Guarantead Sewer
Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Sesond  Series, 445% o
£.00% interest, senal porion
payable in increasing ennual
inslaliments of 80,000 in
2005 10 F 80,000 in 2012 350,000 - - 350,000 - -
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Eniance Ealante
Cutslanging Cutsiznding
Revenug MNojes January 1, Frncipal Dacambear 31, Current
and Bands 2008 Additions Reduclions Refundag 2008 Portion

1894 Guaranteed Water
Fewenue Bonds, 4.00% lo
2.00% interest, serial perlion
payable in  wvamying annual
Ingkaibments of 5455000 in
2005 1o F 30,300 in 2018 % 3,305,000 S - 3 - F 3305000 % - b -

1998 Sueranteed Serwet
Revernye Bonds, 4.00% 1o
5.00% interesd, seral portion
payabke in  wvarying annual
installments of § 1,010,000 in
2005 to § 485.000 in 2018 5 ETS5,000 - - 5,675.000 - -

2001 Guaranised Wekar
Revenue Bonds, 2.30% 1o
H5.00% ntaresi, sarial porticn
payable in vaniing annual
ingtallments of % 1,270,000 in
200519 5 110,009 In 2027 8,230,000 - 1,380,000 - T.8580.000 905,000

2001 Suaranteed Sewer
Revenus Bonds, 2.80% to
5.00% inlerest, serial podion
payable in increasing annual
installments of 57000 in
200516 § 135,000 in 2021 1,430,000 - 5,000 - 1,355,004 80,000

2003 Guaranteed Waler
Revenue Refunding Bonds,
200% o 4378% Inferest,
sendl  porion  payable  in
vanying annual installments of
F330.000 im0 200% o
F 110,000 in 2019 1,080,000 . 155,000 - 825 000 5.00c

2003 Euaraniead Sewsr
Feverys Refunding Bonds,
2.00% to 4.40% inlerest. serdal
portion payable in increading
annual instalimerts af
$ 240,000 in 2005 o
$ 255000 10 2020 4,485,000 . 285,003 - 4,200,000 295 000

2004 Guaranteed Water
Reyenue Bonds, 1.00% tfo
4.40% interest, serial pation
payable in wanying  annual
imstallmenis of § 183,000 Iin
2005 to 5 55,00C in 2024 2410000 - 180,500 . 2,230,060 136,000
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Rewvenus Noles

and Bonds
2004 Suaranteed Sewer
Revenue Bonds, 1.00% fo

4,00% interest, serial poron
payaile in ingreasing annual
installments of $25000 in
2005 1 § 35,300 in 2018

2006  Water Note. 3.85%
interest, warying  principal
anrual paymams of § 327 600
to § 429600 in 2014

2008 zuaranteed Watar
Revenpue Bonds, 300% ta
30 ntarast warnying

princigal annual paymentz of
F 615,000 fn 2008 lo % 30.000
in 2018

2008 Guarantesd Sewer
Rewvenus HBands, 3.00% 1o
3.70% inlerest, warying
principal annual payments of
$530000 in 2008 o

¥ 490,000 in 2018

Tatal

Balance Balance
Outstanding Qulstanding
Januwary 1, Pringipal Decamber 31, Current
2008 Additions Eaductions Eefunded 2008 Fartion
k1 JMoooa  F . 3 253000 % § 285000 & 258,000
2,682 600 340,200 - 2,342,400 355,200
4,385,000 615,000 - 3,750,000 3B0.000
- 6,780.000 530.008 - 5,750,000 L
£ 33602 A00 5 10640000 3 3580208 2 10220000 3 30437400 3,550,200
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Debt service requirements to maturity, including interest of § 102,804,151, are as

follows:
Business-
Type Governmental
Year Ending Activities Activities Total

2009 $ 4759451 $§ 6123319 § 10,882,770
2010 4.777,308 6,308,622 11,085,930
2011 4 577,699 5,309,572 10,887,271
2012 4,581,886 5,309,383 10,891,369
2013 4,293 325 6,317,362 10,610,687
2014-2018 11,391,891 33,205,167 44 597 158
2019-2023 2,327,048 33,588,150 35915198
2024-2028 99,180 34 137,670 34,236,850
2029-2033 - 34,850,917 34,950 917
2034 - 21,118,650 21,118,650

Total $ 36807988 $188.368.812 $225.176.800

ADVANCE REFUNDING

During 2008, the City issued General Obligation Bonds of $ 6,665,000, Water
Revenue Bonds of § 4,365,000 and Sewer Revenue Bonds of § 6,280,000 with
variable interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 3.70%. Proceeds provided for advance
refunding of the cutstanding principal amount of its General Obligation Bond, Second
Series of 1897 and General Obligation Bonds, Series of 1998, Guaranteed Water
Revenue Bonds, Second Series of 1997 and Guaranteed Water Revenue Bonds,
Series of 1998, Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds, Second Series of 1987 and
Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 1898, As a resulf of the above
transaction. the 1997 and 1998 bonds were considered to be defeased in the
amount of § 16,835,000, and the liability for that debt has been removed from the
statement of net assets. The advance refunding increased the City's total debt
service payments and provided an economic gain (difference between the present
value of the debt payment on the old and new debf) of approximately § 1,104,750,
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DEFEASANCE OF DEBT

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligatiocn honds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocahble trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for
the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements.

At December 31, 2008, § 23,670,000 of general obligation bonds, $ 3,530,000 of
water revenue bonds and $ 5380000 of sewer revenue bonds outstanding are
considered defeased.

The following represents changes in long-term liabilities, other than bond and note

iBsUSS:

Accrued vacation:
Governmental activities
Businass-type activities

Total accrued
vacation

Capital leasas:
Govemmental activitias
Business-type activities

Total capital
legses

Balance Balance

January 1, December 31, Current

2008 Additions Reductions 2008 Fortion
% 1,682,053 32748124 % 2,668 832 $ 1,759,345 F 1,458 883
538,961 703 540 580,324 6583177 S504.015
$2322014  §3440664  § 3,349,156 422 522 $ 1,962,878
$ 838471 ¥ 1,582 840 3 513691 £ 1,907,720 3 456 410
1,725 575 - 585,154 1,140,421 474 736
$2064048 § 15820840 51008845 § 3,048,141 631,148

Within the governmental activities, the General Fund is typically used to liquidate the
compensated absences and capital lease obligations.
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The capital assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

Machinery, equipment and vehicles $4,101,108 $ 3,333,071 $7.434,179
Less accumulated depreciation 1.847.051 1,899,895 3,746,946

$2.254.057 $1.435.176 3 3,687,233

Debt service requirements for capital lease obligations are as follows:

Business-
Governmental Type
Year Ending Activities Activities Total

2000 $ 553,188 $ 514679 $ 1,067,867
2010 515,044 514,679 1,029,723
2011 360,197 171,560 531,757
2012 246 956 - 2465 956
2013 and Thereafter 530,616 - 530,616

2,206,001 1,200,918 3,406,915
Less interest 298,281 60,487 398,778

$1.907.720 $1.140.4217 $3,048,141
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS' LONG-TERM DEBT:

At December 31, 2008, the long-term debt of the discretely presented component
units cansisted of the following:

Balance Ealance
January 1, December 31, Current
2008 Additions Reductions 2008 Portian
2003 Guaranteed Parking Revenue
Bonds, 2.00% to 3.80% interest,
aeriat portion payable in increasing
annual installments of § 440,000 in
2005 to § 355,000 in 2018 3225000 % - 3 480,000 § 2745000 S 512,000
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2004 Guaranteed Parking Revenue
Refunding Bonds, 1.75% to 3.50%
interest, serial portion payable in
increasing annual installments of
% 655,000 in 2005 to § 685,000 in
213

2005 Guarantesed Parking Revenue
Bonds, 3.15% to £.00% interest,
gerial portion payable ih increasing
annual installments of § 235,000 in
2006 to & 730,000 m 2035

2007 Parking Revenue Bond, 4 20%,
serial particn payable in increasing
arnual mstallimentz of § 70,000 In
2010 13 F 275 000 in 2031

Mote payable to PA Minority
Business Development Authority,
payable interest only at 1.5% in
gemiannual installments of
§ 2,250; principal balance due at
maturify in Januwary 2012; proceeds
usged to establish & revelving loan
fund to stimulate  creation,
retention, and expansion of
minafity-owned  Businesses.  one
loan has been issued to an arga
company gt June 30, 2008

Morgage payable 1o Nalional Penn
Bank for the construction of a
3r800 square foot building,
s=cured by a shared firsl mortgage
lien an the property located at 601
South 10" Street; payable far a
three year term with interest only
manthly payments and prncipal
due upon sale of the condominium
units with all payments made first
to the construction fcan unlil paid
irt fufl and then to the secured lgan

)

Balance
January 1,

2008 Additions

3880000 3

11,814,000

3,500,000

300,000

- 5 -

2,086,687

$

Reductions

§00,000

230,000

EBalance
December 31,
2008

$  3.280.000

11,580,000

3,500,000

200,000

2,066,681

$

Currert
Portion

615,000

236,000
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Mortgage payable to Commonwealth
Financing  Aulhority  for st
improvements in development of
the South 10th  Street  project;
secured by shared first llen wilh
bank on tract of land at
Bridgeworks;  all  pringipal  and
interast payments deferred, and na
interest accruas until sale or [zase
of site or subdivided portion; upan
sale of any portion, procesds shall
be apphed to reduce principal
amcunt of loan; then interest
accrues at 3%, and level monthly
payments of principal and interest
begin to fully amorize loan by
malurity date of Movember 2026;
an agreement of salg for a potion
of the commercial building under
construction is in sffect at June 30
2007

Morgage payable to Memrill Lynch
Mortgage Trusl [ariginated with
Countrywide  Commercial  Real
Estate Finance, Ing); secured by
[gnd and buildings of Bridgeworks
Industrial Canter, payable for a
10-year  ferm with 15 year
amartization in manthly
installments of §25.237 including
payrient of principal and interest at
578% fixed, ballooning in June
2015; additional monthly payrment
of $14,122 is required to fund
gscrow accounts subject  to
specified  withdrawal conditions;
AEDC i5 reguired to comply wath
certain continuing loan provisions

Tatal long-term deht

Less unarmorized deferred
costs of refunding

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31, Current
2008 Additiens Reductigns 2008 Portion
3 953125 % - ] S82.164 % Jroesr Ok
3.855 199 - 78 382 3776817 452 391
27,603 324 2.086 631 1,870 546 27 559 459 1,.808_391
3159.650 - 40 386 278 T84 4} BBE
S 27183674 $ 20666A1 H 1920860 § 27320695 § 1,761.508



City OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
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The Allentown Parking Authority has a $ 2,000,000 line of credit with a bank at 70% of the
Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, which was 2.275% at December 31, 2008. At
December 31, 2008, $ 340,853 was outstanding on the line of credit.

The City guarantees the obligations of the Allentown Parking Authority parking revenue
bonds and the installment debt of AEDC.

Debt service requirements to matunty, including interest of $ 13,545 470, are as follows for
the Allentown Parking Authority and AEDC:

Allentown
Allentown Economic
Parking Development
Year Ending Authority Corporation Tofal
2008 $ 2225154 § 1,857,781 3 4182935
2010 2,069 566 332,489 2402155
2011 2,078,060 1,117,777 3,195,837
2012 2,081,044 605,082 2,686,136
2013 2,083,809 302,841 2,386,650
2014-2018 6,167,908 3655195 9.823.103
2019-2023 5,103,523 - 5,103,623
2024-2(028 5,157 633 - 5,157,633
2029-2033 4674 207 - 4674207
2034-2035 1.532 750 - 1,532,750
Total $33173764 5 7871176 $541.144 929

9. RisKk MANAGEMENT, ACCRUED CLAIMS LIABILITY
The City is exposed to varicus risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters for which the City has
established a limited risk management program as further described in Nofe 1.

- 77 -



CITY OF ALLENTOWHN, PENNSYLVANIA
MNoOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Changes in the accrued claims liability during the past two years are as follows:

2008 2007

Accrued claims liability, January 1, $1,728,538 $1,680,608
Incurred claims (including estimated claims

incurred but not reported as of December 31):

Provision for current year events 3,068,779 2,090,750

Payments {2,552687) (2,042,820)
Accrued claims liability, December 31 $2,244630 $1.728538
Current portion $2,244,630 $1,728.538

The City uses an internal service fund to account for its risk financing activities. The
fund accounts for the risk financing activities of the City, but does not constituie a
transfer of risk from the City. The basis for reporting an estimated lgss from a ¢laim as
an expendilurefexpense and as a liability is f both the loss is probable and can be
reasonably estimated.

10. OTHER PosST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB})
PLAN DESCRIPTION;

The City provides healthcare coverage for eligible retirees and their spouses through
the City's group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired
members. Eligible retirees may efect to enrol! in the health care coverage provide fo
active employees. The Plan provides health care, prescription drug, dental and
vision coverage for the retiree, spouse and dependents until Medicare eligibility
(normally age 65). Retireas contribute 25% of the monthly healthcare premiums
established by the City.

FUNDING POLICY AND ANNUAL OPEB casT:

The City retiree healthcare plan is a self-funded program, in which retiree premiums
are determined annually based on comparable premium rates offered by health
insurance providers. The cost of the benefits provide by the Plan is currently being
paid by the City on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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The City's annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost expense for each plan
is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded
actuarial llabifities {or funding excess) over a pericd not to exceed 30 years.

The City's annual OPEB cost for the current year and the related information for
each plan is as foliows:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $3,856,278
Interest on net OPER obligation -
Adjustment to the annual required

contributicn -
Annual OPEB cost 3,858,279
Contributions made 1,810,000
increase in net OPEB obligation 2,046,279

Net OPEB abligation, beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $2.046,279

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annua! OPEB cost contributed
to the plan and the net OPEB abligation for 2008 for each of the plans were as

follows:
Percentage
Annual of OPEBR Met
OPEB Cost OPEB
Year Ended Cost Contributed Chtigation
12/31/2008 $3.856 279 47% $2,046 278
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FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS:
The funded status of the plan as of January 1, 2008, the most recent actuarial

valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial present value at attained age (APVAA):
Active members $47.284,032
Retired members 26,439,085

Total APVAA $73.723. 117
Unfunded Actuarial accrued liability {UAAL):
$26 955,544
26,439,085

Active members

Retired members
553,394,629

Total AL
Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Unfunded Liability
Actuarial Actuarial (Funding
Value Accrued Excess)
of Assets Liability Funded Covered asa
{AVA) {LJAAL) Ratio Payroll Percentage
$53,384,629 - % $47,322,686 112%

3 -
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Annual requirad contribution (ARC):

Nomat cost $ 1,949,206
30-year amonrtization of UAAL 1,906 983
Total ARC $ 3856270

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events in the future. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The reguired Schedules
of Funding Progress presented as supplementary information provide multiyear frend
information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time refative to the actuarial liakility for benefits.

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS:

Projections of henefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the
valuation date and the pattern of shanng benefit costs between the Township and
the plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective
and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Significant
methods and assumptions are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date January 1, 2008
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amaortization method Level percentage of pay
Remaining amaortization peried 28 years

Asset valuation method N/A
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Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 4% per annum
Projected salary increases 3.59% per year due fto
inflation, plus 1.5% due to
merit
Healthcare inflation rate Declining scale from an 8%
increase for 2008

decreasing 0.5% per year
to a 5% increase for 2015
and later

11. DEFRICIT FUND BALANCES

The deficit fund balance of § 749,275 at December 31, 2008 in the Trexler Fund was
created due to an advance to the Capital Projects Fund and a delay in recognition of

grant revenue. This deficit balance will resclve itself in 2009 as grant revenues are
received.

The deficit fund balance of § 306,625 at December 31, 2008 in the E-911 Fund was
due to expenses incurred in anticipation of receipts never received from the funding
source. This deficit balance will resclve itself through additionai collections of program
revenues or a transfer of funds from the General Fund.

12. COMMITMENT

The City has a commitment for the purchase and installation of eguipment at the
Wastewater treatment plant of approximately $ 589,000 as of December 31, 2008.
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13. CONTINGENCIES
SUPPORT FROM GOVERNMENTAL UNITS
OTHER

The City participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or
partially funded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures
financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor government. If
expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program
regulations, the City may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of
December 31, 2008, significant amounts of grant sxpenditures have not been
audited by the grantor government, but the City believes that disallowed
expenditures, if any, based on subsequent audits, will not have a material effect
on the financial position cf the City.

LITIGATICN
PRIMARY (GOVERNMENT

The City is involved in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of its
municipal activities. Management believes that the resolution of these actions is
not expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial statemenis of the

City.
14. NEwW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The following standards will be effective in the future for the City:

The GASB has issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
intangible Assets. This Statement reguires that all intangible assets not specifically
excluded by its scope provisions be classified as capital assets. Accordingly,
existing authoritative guidance related to the accounting and financial reporting for
capital assets should be applisd to these intangible assets, as applicable. This
Statement also provides authoritative guidance that specifically addresses the nature
cf these intangible assets. Such guidance shcould be applied in addition to the
existing authoritative guidance for capital assets. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15,
20098,
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The GASB has issued Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as
investments by Endowmenis. This Statement establishes consistent standards for
the reporting of land and other real estate held as investments by essentially similar
entities. It requires endowments to report their land and other real estate
investments at fair value. Gowvernments also are required to report the changes in
fair value as investment income and to disclose the methods and significant
assumptions employed to determine fair value and other information that they
currently present for other investments reporied at fair value. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for pericds beginning after June 15,
2008.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments. This Statement addresses the recognition, measurement
and disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by state
and local governments. The disclosures reguired by Technical Bulletin No, 2003-1,
Disclosure Requirements for Derivatives Not Reporled af Fair Value on the
Sfafement of Nel Assels, have been incorporated into this Statement. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after June 15, 2009,

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In April 2008, the City issued General Obligation Notes for $ 5,310,000 to fund the cost
of certatn capital projects.
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLYVAN|A
REQUIRED 5UPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHERULE OF REVENLIES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAMCES - BUDGET AND ACTLUIAL -

BLUDGETARY BAELS - GEMNERAL FUMD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Gereral Fund
Original Budget . Firal Buggel Awstual Vaiiarce - Final Burdget

REYEMUES:
TAdES:
Real gatzte

Current & 29,100 000 5 9 100.Ca0 2B.514,525 $ [Ta5,179!

Friar year 1,200,000 1,364,030 1,095 &37 (200,113

Lefugh County Tax Claims 35000 358,400 75631 (27 447

Tolal Real Cetate Taxes 30435000 3C,435.000 20,£27 268 1,012,735)

Act D11 Taxes

Famed Income 7500000 7,500 000 7,236,465 (263, 535)

Residenca Per Capity 286,000 285000 242 628 (22,378

Arusement Davces 28000 26,000 28,236 226

Deed Transfer 2,800,000 2,500,000 1,238,012 [1,561,987)

Local Services Tax 2,550,000 £ BS0000 2,212,840 1537, 360

Eusingss Privilege B BL0 A0 B, G00 000 5,311,326 L2BR AT

Total &zt 51° Taxes 20,044,000 20,041,000 17 257,305 (2,773,892)

TOTAL TAXES L0476, 000 G0,dTE, Q00 A5, 689.573 [3,756,427)
LICEMSES AWD FERMITS.
Buziness Lioenges 350,000 350,000 45].112 100,112
Billboard & Sign PemitsiLicenses 9,000 3,90€: a2 (1,198)
Building Permiiz & Licenses 580,50 550,000 57F 103 17.103
Liquar Ligenses 60,000 50,000 BE_TED (3,290)
Plumbing Perrmil: & Liccnsss 200,040 200,000 160 957 139073
Health Bureau Permits & Licenses 150,000 150,000 148 55 1121a)
Rentat Inspzction Frogram B25.000 825,000 500 Gd1 [315.359)
Electrical Perrmts & Licenses 225 000 225,000 309,774 TE774
Zaning Parmits § Fees 110 0003 110.000 72954 [37.001:
Fue Deparment Inspecion Fees 55000 55.0A0 E7.508 12,508
CATY Franch'se Fees 535,000 SA5,000 BB Bog [B3, 104}
Other Parmits & Licenses 280,000 25000 238,068 [11,934;
TOTAL LICENSES ANDO PERMITS 3.729.000 3,728.000 3,455 268 (265 732)
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CITY OF ALLENTOWHN, PENMSYLWANIA

RECQUIRED SUPPLEMEMNTARY INFCHRMAT ION

SCHEDULE GF REVENLUES, EXPEMDITURES ANG CHANGES M FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUMD (cortinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDELR TECEMEBER 31, 2048

General Fund
Criginal Budgst Final Budget Aol Warignge - Final Budget
FINES AME FRRECITS
District Court 350,000 ¥ 350,000 ] 228. 246 [£3.754)
Parking Authority Raimbyrsment 175,000 175,000 BE.543 (36 457
Finus & Rastitution 185,000 155,000 LP9.TE 15.285)
TOTAL FIMES AMD FORFEITS 710,000 710,000 B2 S0 1117 495)
INTERGCWERMNMEMNTAL REVENUES.
Health Sranis Acls 335 4 12 500,000 200,00 8LE.573 BT
Health Categoncal Granis 1,445, 500 1,811, %16 1,220 855 2490 9E1)
PoliceiFire Training 500,30C 800,500 433 221 (67,7749
State Aid for Pangign 3,825,000 3,825,000 4,678,120 $146 &70)
Polige Grants/Reimbyrsements BED,O00 1.058, 822 1.282 470 223945
Othar SrantsMiscellanagous 1,300,000 2,727,914 1,541,189 [*,386.710)
TATAL INTERGOYVERKNMENTAL REVEMUES &, 720,500 10 523,342 B 563,538 (1,658 504
CHARGES FOR SERVICES.
Departiment Easnirgs
TawMunicipal Certificasions 170,90G 170,000 100 535 (55 455]
A5 . Tax Biling/Reimbursemert 63,000 £3.000 50,260 {3,731
Podica Extra Duty Jobs JB0,000 v5,525 440 451 103,523
Health Bureau Services G0,000 40,000 29,224 (30, TEa]
Street Excavation'Restoraticn &0,800 90,000 32173 (27527
Printing & Copier Feea 115,000 115,040 108,543 (8,457
{Hner Charges or Senvica 200,000 204,180 282,724 18,564
“ehicla Towing Agreament 145,000 145,10 158,750 13,750
EME Transt Fees 2,900,000 2,900,000 3085553 195,853
Warrants of Survey 15,000 15,0300 13,007 1,993}
Toial Deparmental Earnings 4,073,000 4,108,088 4,207 336 189,281
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CITY OF ALLENTOWHN, PENNSYLVANLA

HEQUIREL SUPFLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENMDITURES ANG CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BURGET AND ACTUAL -

BUDGETARY BASIS - GEMERAL FUND {zontinued}
FoR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER, 31, 2003

General Fund
Crrigglnal Eedget Fihal Budget Actual Vanance - Fingl Budast
Municipal Recreatian
Swirmming Paal Fees 135 0400 135,000 *45.634 11.634
Recraation Faes B0.000 BO,0O0 TOAEY (9.813)
Tetal Municpal Recreation 15600 215,040 216821 1821
Gengral Furnd Service Charges:
Watar Service Charges 1.744,210 1.744, 210 1,744,310
Sower Serace Charges 1.647.071 1.847,071 1.547.071
Cther Service Charges 725,719 728,714 7L 501 [28 818)
Tolal Genaral Furd Sarace Charges 4,020,000 4,020,000 3,803,142 [25.818)
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICE 8,313 000 5343 068 4,507 242 1E4 254
INVESTMENT INCOME 212 000 212 0ao 651,317 [160,6E3)
OTHER IKCOME.
Rental of City Property 150,000 150,000 23632 [B5.268]
Cebt Proceecs - -
Gantributions 150,000 274.210 124,294 (150,024
Damaga b Ciby Prapesty EQ.000 BJ.000 24955 [25,045)
Lighits in the: Parkway 180,000 80,000 113,337 [35.563)
Pennsylvania Litlity Realty Tax E5.000 E5.000 BB 555 3,885
Allentown Heuging Awhgrity 25000 25.000 TH,246 53,248
Sewsge Capaoty Ssles 1.104.000 1.3040.000 1,057,500 12 504)
Ciby Auction Praceats £1.500 B1.600 18,722 (42 776
FRacieatiorsSpeclal Events 49.205 11.112 4627 5.483)
tiscellanecls 1, 200000 1.235 000 GG 05G 1628,944)
TOTAL QTHER INCOME 2570, 705 3,133,922 2219520 1913,002)
TOTAL REVEMUES 75,731 205 3 TG 352 5 T0983 482 [B.7d2 550
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CITY OF ALEENTOWN, PENNSYLWVANIS

RECQUIRED SUFFLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDOITURES ANO CHANGES IN FUMD BALAMCES - BUDGET AMG ACTUAL -
BUOSETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND [continued)

FOR THE YEAR CNOED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Gionaral Fund
Lrrigiral Budaet Final Budget Actual Warianze - Final Budget
EXPENDITLIRES:
GENEHAL GEWERMNMEMT:
Naordepartmenta, :

Ciy Council 361 413 3Th 527 334 BET A1, 280

{ffice ofthe Mayar 310128 3Ev.288 320,054 T.244

ity Cantroller 262,789 278,200 228 BEG 49,534

Lz 548,606 572708 SESE12 7,004

General and C vic Ba2 254 0G5 254 2599 974 & 280

Tatal Mandepetmeantal 2,365,155 246 305 2.345.973 111.412
Departmerti of Figanze
Finanga 3,601 645 3,770,229 4,5B8,673 B0, 566
Tatal Dapartrmant of Finance 3,601 645 770,239 3380873 LI
Human Resaurces 65,520 572774 525 465 47 AC8
Tatal Human Resaurces ERESZ ET2 774 SE6,4B4 47306
Maragement Systems,

Management Diractar & Infarmation Sves 1,745 385 1,868,7E3 1,663 6BT 205,078
TOTAL MANAGEMENT SY¥STEMS 1,745 385 1,866, 7B 1.663 BAY 206 078
TOTAL GEMERAL GOVERKNMENT 2,185,708 2573 181 T T Td4 362

L FETY;
Departmeni af Pualic Sgfaiy

Palize 27 ATT 413 2C 184 553 25458557 T25.006g

Fire 14,795, 187 16,375 B85 15670 BRa 1265 004)

Comminicat ons T21, 7] T81,369 BT ,158 120,911
TOTAL PUBLIG SAFETY 42 K08, 50 45351 577 A4 TEI BT 551,855
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CITY LVAMIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEGULE OF REVENDES, EXFENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTRUAL -
BUDGETARY BASIS - GEMERAL FUND {continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

General Fund
Onginal Budget Firal Budipet Actual “arance - Finel Budgeat
PUELIZ WTRKS:
Department of Public Works:

Diractors office 122 752 ivr.dbi 122,549 (5, 193)

Building Maintenances 1,966,607 2.041.935 1.62a812 217,323

Flaat Maintenanca Operation 26682 550 3143520 28972439 171,036

Streals 1,995 211 apdnTAT 1,795 045 AT 592

Traflic Planring ard Cortrel 1027413 1.05868 7E3 892,775 25,983

Street Lighting 512,180 FE8, 950 443 118 123,844
TOTAL PLELIC WORKS 8,208 6Of 9,071,570 &, 110635 &50,E85
FIEALTILAND SANITATION
Departtmeant of Community Development:

Hezlth 3,008,344 3,288 681 3011 4953 27T.735
TOTAL HEALTH ANO SANMLTATION 2,005,354 3,225,621 3,011,853 23T70E
PAEKES AMD RECEEATION.

Depariment of Cammurity Cevelapment:

FPark Manierance 36,245 793,580 BT, 3EG 135,491

Recreaton n&T 6D A91 6497 E72 546 18,951

Swimming Pool Crperation 409,515 ADS, 924 AR HER 24,239
TOTaAL PARKS AND RECEEATION * T3 ASE 1,791 401 1,611,620 178,781
COMMUNITY BEYELCPMENT-

Tepartment of Community Develoaoment:

Directpr's Offica 1,£T7 B4G 2,314,633 1,937 (&2 377,551

Planrury and Zarng TT2133 1,917 454 1,413,892 103,562

Bullding Standards & Safety 2,863,352 2,75%,914 2,194,897 GEa g1y
TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELGPMENT

AMD PLANNIMNG 4,813,361 6,592,001 5,545,571 1,04E.020
CAPITAL QUTLAYS 1,249.812 [ 1 228.G17 38,142
TOTAL CAPITAL QHITLAYS 1,249,812 1,283,768 1.228.817 &, 142
TOTAL EXFEMDITURES 0,151,629 TE, 05,950 72235 234 3,615,628
Excess (def tisncy) of revenyas over 3 5, B59,57R % 1,674,492 % 1,252 862) (2,927 264}

[L-nder! expendiluras
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LENT FENMSYLWANIA
REGIUIRED SUFPLEMEMNTARY INFORMATICN

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHAMGES IN FUND BALAMCEE - EUGGET AND ACTUAL -

BUDGETARY BAGIS - GENERAL FUND {zonfinued;
FOR THE YEAR ENQER DECEMBER 31 2002

General Fund
Criginal Budget Final Budge! &ctual Vangnoe - Final Budget

OTHER FINANCING 20URCES [USES),
Operating Transfers In

Homeiand Segurity for Waten'Sawar 200,053 200.0070 200,000 -

D Blpzk Grani Reimbursamarnt 478,000 475,000 444,025 (30,975
Cperating Transfers Cut

[eabt Sarvies Fund (B B35 958 [6,526,935] 5. 06, T4) BT, 186

911 Fung (2500000 (250,Q00 [260.000)
TOTAL OTHER FINAMNCING SOURCES fuges) ne: (5,211, 855) 06,211,985 {9672 774) 539,211
Mot change i furd balances: § 542,409) 5 4,537 683 I 18,920 B35] 5 (2,2BE8.063)
Add back resense far encumbrancza B4 123
Met effect of gther income,

and expenciture sceruals Lo 83 0E2

Net charge in fund balances (5,832,391}
FUBRD BALAMCES [DEFFCITY, BEGINMNING 0F YEAR 14 137 G50

FUND BALAMCES, EMD OF YEAR

San naies o inancial statemenss
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CITY OF ALLENTOWHK, PEMNSYLVANIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY [NFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES AND CHANGES [N FLUIND BALANCES - BUDGET AMD ACTUAL -
BUDGETARY BASIS - PENNSYLVANIA MOTOR FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2008

Pannsylvania Motar Fund

Original Budpet Final Budget Actug! “Wariance - Final Budget
REYEMUES:
INTERGIVERNMENTAL REVENLIES:
PA Liquid Fuels Tax % 2062000 F 2062000 3 20683770 i 1,770
Statle Aid for Pension 3,100 9.10q 14 264 5164
TOTAL INTERGWERMNMENTAL REVENUES 2071100 2.071,103 2078034 5,934
INVESTMENT INCOME 20,000 20,000 21,777 1777
OTHER INCOME
Miscellansaus 5,500 5,000 f9,221 54221
TOTAL QTHER INCOME 8,000 5,000 a% 221 4 221
TOTAL REVENUES §F 2098100 & 2085100 F 21559032 3 G2 532
EXPENDITURES:
PUBLIC WORKS
Department of Fublic Waorks:

Streels 2,455 294 2,495 254 2,010,507 484 7&7
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 2455 294 2,495 2% 2,010 5047 484 787
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,495 294 2,485 2ad 2,010,507 4B Far
Excezs (deficiency) of revenues over $ (20919 §  {399194) % 148,525 § 547719

[under) expanditures
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CITY DF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

REGWMRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BLIDGET AND ACTUAL -
BUDGETARY BASIS - PENNSYLWANIA MOTOR FLIND

FOR THE YEAR EMDED DECEMEER 31, 2008

Pennsyhrania Motor Fund

Met change in fund halances

Add back reserve for encumbrances
Mel effect of gther Incame,

ang expanditure accruals

Met change in fund balances

FLUND BALANCES, BEGIMNNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

Staternent consists of both facing pages

Criginal Budget

5

(368, 194)

Final Budget Agtual

$ (3905548 148,525

93

26,730

178,253

4,927

i 983, 152

Varance - Final Budgat

& 547 714




Cimty OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets as required by the City Charter are adopted by City Council on a cash
basis and include appropriations to cover prior and anticipated current encumbrances.
Appropriations not reserved for encumbrances lapse at the year-end. Budgets are
legally adopted for the General Fund, Pennsylvania Motor Fund, Debt Service Fund
and Capital Projects Fund.

The City Administration on or before November 1 presents the proposed budgets to
City Council. A series of public hearings and discussions occur reiated to the budgets
and on or before December 15, City Councii approves the budgets. At the time of the
budget adoptions, City Council adopts varicus ordinances related to tax rates and other
rates and fees.

The City Charter requires the City's legal level of budgetary control to be at the fund
level. As a management control, the Finance Director has the power to authorize the
transfer of any unexpended balance between accounts within a fund.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, for all fegaily budgeted funds, budgetary
expenditures did not exceed appropriations.

- 04 -
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CITY OF ALLENTOWRM, PENNSYLYANA

COMPOMENT UMITS
COMBINING STATEMEMTS OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 200B

Allanigwn Allenigun
Fedevelopment Parking
Sutharily AEDC Authicrity Tatals
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5 AB5, TEE 5 1,954 881 § 1405867 kS 5.8038,508
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted - 1,518,853 - t.5818.853
Cash and cash equivalents - designated - - - -
Inwestmenis, certificates of deposits - - 1,257,313 1,257,313
Accounts receivable 3626 342 677 245 GE4 592,185
Accrued interest receivable - 13,520 13,529
Imyaniony 31,437 31,457
FPrepaid expenses . 206 Tas 206,785
Lue frarm giher govemments E1,550 - E1.3990
Mates receivable, surent maturilies - - -
Mlscelanedus receivablas @nd prepaymenis - -

Tolak currant assels 31,273 3,828 411 3,250,008 7.710,590

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cach and cash eqLivalens 145 149
Ihwastiments, cerificales of depasil - -
Araruad inlerest -

Takal restricled agsels — 145 144
CAPITAL ASSETS, nef of sacoumulaled depreciation 1.565,163 26.216,359 44957 307 72752823
CEFERRED CHARGES, net of acaumulated amarizaticn - 325150 325990
CTHER ASSETS - 1,026,042 - 1,026.042

TOTAL ASSETS & 2. 200 434 § 31070812 4 48 543 548 1,814 7594

LIARILITIES AN NET ASSETS
CLRRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable 5 0474 k1 87,040 k1 265,134 3 282 GEd
Maongage and note pavable - - 340,853 340,863
Accnied expenzes - - 265,293 265.205
Bonds payable - - 1,309,114 1,309,114
Cther current Fabilities 27 498 325,373 94 434 447.BD5

Total cument ljabilities 57 872 412 853 2,274 824 2 T4R 753
MOMCLRREMT LIABILITIES:

Deferred revenus - 11113122 11,113,122
Martgage and nole payeble £.514.458 - 5514458
Cther postemployment benefit liabiliby - 25037 28,087
Bends pavaike e s 19,487 122 18 4ET 152
Total nancument Fakilities i £.514 458 30,635 341 37 148 200
Totel lizhikities 57412 6027 412 32910169 39 B85 BES
MET ASSETS:

Inyesled in capilel assets net af refated debt 1,959,163 18,501,900 23,762 953 44 534,016
Unrestricted nel assels (deficif) 573,301 4 541.500 [8,129.575) 2814 ¥TE]
Total net assels 2,142 464 24143400 15,633,377 41 915 241

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 3 2200 435 F 31070812 F 43542 546 $ E1514 704
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CITY CGF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
COMPONENT UMITE

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF AEVENUE, EXPEMSES AND CHANGES IN MET ASSETS

FQR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBLR 31, 2003

BllBrttwn Allentown
Fedevalapment Parking
Authonty AEDOT Authority Tatals
SUPPQRT AND QPERATING REVERMUE
Charges far seraces
Parking fees ¥ & - % 8123920 5 6123520
Rental Income - 923,435 923 436
Fees and service charges - 1,452 1.402
Management fae Income - 17,837 17,837
Frofesslonal sanaces - 4,733 5733
Contributians and grants - 71,404 71.400
Froceeds from zale of bulldeng - 98,004 95,000
Rher Income 1,005,024 - - 1,805 924
Infergovemmental revenue 1,147 634 5043 2393 - B 180 Q27
Total support and cperating revenue 2 B8 558 B.f61,101 5123 620 14 538178
CPERATIMG EXPENSES:
Adrminigirative services and related costs - 334 155 384 155
Adverhsing, prormafion and marketing 431 2313 744
Ean dani - 11, GEE
City grant programs - 391,671 a1 671
ity funding refurn to COBG program - - - -
Canribuliong 054, 738 - G0, 738
Depreciation and amortzation - 265,909 1,075,042 1,648,751
Dy and subscriptions 1,378 1,795 - 3171
Insurance 2980 73,089 - T, 5%
Lgan packaging - ang - a5
Matarials and supplies 34587 - SKRLLE 95957
Offlee supplies and relaled expenses 3277 18,534 - 2211
Friofasslanal fees 30.025 114 B45 - 144 BTQ
Frogram axpanses 1,280,305 5286 - 1,295,591
Real estate and athar taxes - 53,685 53,666
Rent u 1,085 - 1,065
Repair, maintenance and mlscellanaaus - 140,691 - 146 691
Telephone and utilities 71 184 858 - 189,924
Trade associaions - 1615 - 16815
Training and professiana devalopmett - 16049 - 1,608
Travel and meetings 2.134 6,161 - 52958
Services and charqes 2,108 - TB1,484 TE3.587
Wanes and benefits 138,73 2 DB&, 128 2,207 858
Total aperating expensn 1,476 425 2 664471 4 AB8 454 & 587,280
MET OFERATING REVEMUE [EXPENSE) 1,177,133 3,406 930 1,655 081 B 340, 720
MOKNOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):
Investment income 3.530 152,234 B5,7a3 244 410
Interest expense - (324, B38) (9540, 520) {1,285427)
Galn {Logs) an dispasel of capital assets - (31,448 7112 (24,339
Mezrallansgus - 15,225 105,751 122 GBG
Tolal nonoperating revenue (expenset 3338 (187 B25] (TR0 A7) (D5, 3656)
Income before eentributions 1,180,471 3,309,105 894 183 8,383,759
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTEONS
Caplial caniritndions - 280,00 250,000
Contributlans to City af Allenigwn - - [2230,113% (230,113}
CHANGE IMN MET ASSETS 1,184 471 3,509 105 314 070 2,403 G466
MET ASSETS, BECINMING OF YEAR Q51,983 E0 BSR4 295 14 7189307 36,515,095
PRICR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - -
MET ALGSETS. BLGINMING DF YEAR, AS RESTATED 951,993 20834 295 14 718,307 38,515,585
MET ASEETS. EMC OF YEAER § 2142 484 § 24143400 _§ 156353377 £ 41,919,241
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLYANIA

COMPONENT UMITS
COMBINIMG STATEMENTS QOF CASH FLOWS
F2R THE YEAFR, ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2008

Hliantawn Alleniewn
Redeveloprment Parking
_________ ) Authorily AEDC Authority Tataly
CASH FLOWSE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Recepts from sustamers 5 - 5304033 % 8267562 % 11,671,685
Inlergowamemanial ravenues 3,300.5684 5,044,812 - 8,350,376
Payrentz ko employees - 6,375 437} (2,032,737} (B.411, 174
Fayments ta suppliers {2 982 338) 2,323 3359} {746,411} 16.032,038)
Met cash provided by operating activities 318226 1,662 068 3.485 414 5,478,708
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FIMANCING ACTIVITIES:
Advanca tofram othar funds £3.357 - - 53,357
Contributions o City of Adlentown - - {230 113} {230,113)
Met cazh uzed in nencapital financing activities 53,357 - (230113 (176, 756)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAEL AMD RELATED
FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitian of capital assets - {161,654} {2,362 713 {2.524,372)
Procaeds frem sale of capital assets - &, B85 131,227 226202
Additions to project development projects - {3,525 585) . (3,525 585
Capilal conlnbutions - - 250,000 250,000
Principal payrmentzs an notes and bonds payable - {1,102, 064) 1,310,000} {2.412.064)
Promeeda from bonds payaile - 2,487,337 . 2 487 337
Intarast pag - (935, 875) (926 975
Debt lzseance costs - (28,000
Trustee fees - . 4. 04 4,040
Met cash used in capital and relsted
financing activities {2,234 978) 422285HM)  _ {540477)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Maturitiss of cerificates of deposit - BT, 347 BY7 387
Purchase of cerificates of deposit - - {1,257.313) {1.2E7.313)
Investment income 3,339 - 76810 B0, 145
Realty income . - 13Ea0 113620
Met cash provided by invesling sctivllies 3339 u [485.496) (465, 157)
WET DECREASE IM CASH AMD CASH EQGUIVALENTS 94 g3 (582 907 i1,453,696) 1,641 681}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGIMNING 175,838 4 OGE 641 2 858,712 7,099,189
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, EMDING S5E5 758 3485734 1406 Hé §,457 508
Recansiliation of aperating mssme (o net cash
provided by oparating activilies:
{Qperating income 1 177,132 3,340 551 1,655,351 8,172,744
Adpustrmants to reconale sperating NCome ta
nat cash pravided by operating activities
Depreciation and amartization 1,345,110 289800 1,575,842 499 5:H
Change in assets and habllities:
Accounts and notes receivable [3,525] 4,034 286 {26, 235) 4,004 &30
Bad debt 00, Ak 11,566 - 511,866
Invanbany - - {19,6561) {19,661
Frepaid expenses - - [15,480) {15,430
Agcounls payable and acciuad oxpenses 14,387 (5,994 232% 143,837 (5,836, 258)
Deferred revenue {1.B5D) - 135,625 131,068
Cher ligkilibes 1 100748 IMEIS 24 542
Met cash provided by cperaling activilies by & 1.652 0ES kS 3488414 § E478 708
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVARIA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENCITURES AND CHANGES IN FUNC BALANCES - BURGET ANC ACTUAL -

BUDGETARY BASIS - CARITAL PROJECTS AMD CEBT SERVICE FUNMDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED: DECEMBER 31, 2008

Capital Projacts
Orginal Budgel Final Budaet Aclual Varange

REVEMUES:
Chargas far sarvices $ f i - 3 144149 % 144.149
Inlargovarmmantal revenues 340,000 2,554,214 FBTE,014 2700
Qthas 175,000 175 Q0 16,540 (158 4608
Total revenues 518 000 2529214 2837 803 &.349
CXPENCITURES.
Curent.
Genaral govarnment - - -
Caplal aullay 36,877,704 3B 59520 11,830,637 27 564 504
Dabt sargce-princips - - - .
Dabt scevec-nterast - -
Total expenditures 38,877,705 39,685,221 11,830,637 2?.364.5_94
Excess (deficiency) of revenuas aver
(undery expendstyres {38, 362.705] {34, 566,017) (6,993, 054) 27 8724933
CTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LSES)
Dperaling fransiens-aut - . R
Dperaling fransiems-in 1,725,000 2,225,000 2,225.000 -
Tolal gther fitancing sounes (Usas), nat 1,725 000 2225000 2,225 B -
Mai chanda in fund balancos 3 (34,637,709 § (34,641,017} {B,TEE.034) § ET.872 983
Add back reserve for encumbrances 4,376 Bl
Met effect of other income,

and expendilure accruals 1,375,208
Mei change in fund balances {3,767.742)
FUND BALAMNCES | BEGINMING OF YEAR 5,201,007
FUND BEALANCES | END OF YEAR § 1,433,265

Schadule eanglsie of both facing pages
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Dett Sarvice

CQrigiral and
Final

Budget Actual Yarance

¥ 37.834 5 35,754 ¥ 2,084
2.633.a00 2,633,300 -
4,321,190 a_Tal, 394 530,201
6,992 424 B 460,453 532.3M
16,992 824) 16,460,453 (532371
4 B0z 024 G460 453 HIZ2.271
092,824 B 460,453 532,371

i - - ¥ -
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GITY OF ALLENTOWN, PERNSYLWVANIA

COMBINING SCHEDWULES OF CHAMGES 1M ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -

AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2008

EARMNED INCOME TAX ESCROW:

Assels:
Cash and cash equivalants
Chue Erom other funds

Total assels
Liabilities:
Due to other funds

[ue to other governments

Total liatsilities

PAYROLL WITHHOLDING FUNDS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assetz

Liabihties:
Prayrall tax liability
Due to other fonds

Total liakilitias

TaX COLLECTION FLMD:
Cash and cash aguivalants

Totzl assetz

Lighinties-
Dua to other funds
Dwie to ather governments

Taotal liahilities

TOTAL ALL AGENCY FUNDS:

Azzets:
Cash and cash equivalants
Cue from other funds

Total asseta

Lighilitiog
Fayrall tax hablity
Cuea to gthar funds
Due to alher governments

Fotal habilities

Balange Balanoa
January 1, December 31,
20108 Additions Deduchons Q08
3,737 AYR 33,853,877 32,968,766 a4, 703 08%
- 160,104 160,104 -
3737878 34,014,081 33,048,870 4 T0% OB
- 2,151,512 2,151,312 -
3737878 31,662,769 30,897,558 4,703,089
3,737 878 34,014,081 33.043, 370 47073 088
1,128 327 15,608,210 15,634, 028 1,302 458
1,12B.327 16,808,210 15,634,025 1,302 488
1,128 327 15,624 550 15,450,475 1,302 438
- 153,560 153,580 -
1,128 3387 16,608,210 15,634,028 1,302 488
&,3a0,508 83,310,048 £7,8%8,524 3,792 118
8.380,598 83,310,048 B7,B98,529 3,792,118
- 258,643 841 25,543,841 -
B 380,553 &Y 466 208 £2,054 683 3,792,198
8,380,595 83,310,049 87,698,524 3,782 118
13,246,803 132 002 258 136,421,334 9,797,705
- 160,104 160, 104 -
13,248,803 133,132,340 136,581,438 9797, 70%
1.128,327 15 624,650 15,450,478 1,302,458
- 26,178,713 28178713 -
12,118,478 88,328 977 92 952 248 8,495 207
13,245,803 133,132,340 136,581,428 8,797 705
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City of Allentown

Statigtical Section

This part of the City of Allentown's comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding this year's financial statements,
note disclosures, and supplementary information.

Contents Tahle
Financial Trends 1-5

These tables contain trend information that may assist the reader
in assessing the government's current financial performance by
placing it in historical perspective.

Revenue Capacity 6-9

These tables contain information that my assist the reader in
assessing the viability of the govermment's most significant local
revenye SOurces.

Dehbt Capacity 10 - 14

These tables offer present information that may assist the reader in
analyzing the affordability of the government's current levels of
outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Economic & Demographic Information 16-16

These tables offer economic and demeographic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the
government's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 17 - 19

These tables contain service and infrastructure indicators to help

the reader understand how the information in the government’s financial
statements relate to the services the government provides and the
activities it performs.

Sources: Uniess othenwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City of Allentown
implemented GASEB Statement No. 34 in fiscal year 2003; tables presenting government-wide
information include information beginning in that year,
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Year

1990
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008

CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues By Source
Last Ten Years

Total
Taxas

35,842,284
36,457,784
36,314,207
40,167,520
39,413,259
46,918,139
48512216
52 579,329
47,186,003

General

Property

Tax

$ 33653807 3 20008280 %

21,460,876
22,048,441
21,636,385
24,343,349
24,310,225
29,437 515
28,777,803
29,401,764
20,593,673
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(accrual basis of accounting)

Earned
Income
Tax

5,991,389 3§

7,198,352
7,304,427
7,245,325
6,277,135
5,620,027
7,091,890
7,173,393
8,244 860
7,554,503

Business
Privilege

Tax

4,897,810
5,155,281
5,250,934
5,525,667
6,207,494
6,052,939
5.087.283
6,376,629
6,487,096
6,311,326

TABLE 3

Other
Local
Taxes

$ 1,756,318

2,027,775
1,823,982
1,806,820
3,339,642
2,430,068
4,401,451
5,184,691
8,445,609
3,726,501
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Fiscal
Year

1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2008
2007
2008

Motes:

CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYL.VANIA

Direct and Cverlapping Governments
Last Ten Years

Property Tax Rates

QOverlapping Rates

Alleniown City  School Bistrict
Total Total
City School
Millage Millage
12.22 31.270
13.22 31.270
13.22 33.31
12.72 34.194
14.72 37.490
14.72 38,490
17.52 41,734
17.53 42,942
17.53 42,842
17.83 (1) 42 642

County

Total

County
Millage

7.31
7.31
7.31
7.31
12.38
10.75
10.75
10.25
10.25
10.25

TABLE 7

Total
Direct &
Overlapping
Rates

36.58
36.08
40.62
64.22
49.88
50.24
70.00
70.71
70.71
70.71

City real estate taxes are payable on June 5 with a 2% discount available if paid prior to
April 5. Taxes can alsc be paid in four equal instaliments on April 15, May 15, June 15,
and July 15. Delinquent taxes are cerified to a private collector for collection on

January 1 of the following year.

The City's property tax rate limitation for general revenue purposes is 25 miils on market
value with an additional 5 mills allowable with specific court approval and an unlimited
amount far bonded debt.

Tax rate is mills per dallar {($1) of assessment.

(1} 17.53 is the base con which the land value tax is calculated (50.38 - land and 10.720 -
improvements).
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA, TABLE §

Pringipal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2008 1994
Percentage of Percantage of
Taxable Total taxable Taxahle Total taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Asgessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Valuation Value Rank Valuation
Plaza at 835 YW Hamilton Street LP $21,870.550 1 1.28%
Home Properties Trexler Park LLC 10,411,580 2 0.62% $ 4589180 2] 0.258%
(1998-Gateside-Trexler Co.)
The Morning Call 6,805 550 3 0.41% 7,212,900 3 0.445%,
Cangress Associates 6,575,850 4 2.39% G 574 250 2 0.549%
The Lakes £.061,050 5 0.35% 5,861,050 5 0.37%
dorris Allentown Associates LF 5,753,700 & 0.34%
Lehigh Yalley Hospital Inc. 5.372 750 7 0.32%
230 Riverbend Apartments LLC 5,304,000 8 0.31%
Mack Trucks Ina. £,295 850 g 0.31% 8,230,800 4 0.38%
Whestmont LP 5,156,050 10 0.31%
Lucent Technologies 14,152 600 1 0.87%
Eastern Retail Holdings 5,817,300 g 0.36%
Allentown Commerce Park Corp. 4,800,000 7 0.30%
Sharma Baldev Raj & Sudesh 4,637,500 8 0.29%
Allentown Oxford Assoc. Lid. 4,197,500 10 0.26%
Fartnership

Total $ 78,308, 900 4 545 67273150 4, 145%

Source:

City of Allentown Property Tax File
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA TABLE 11

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding
Last Ten Years

Percentage of

Estimated
General Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Value of Per

Year Bonds Property Capita
1999 $ 85,715,000 2.63% $ 812
2000 94 810,600 2.60% 785
2001 84 000,000 2.56% 788
2002 78,505,000 2.37% 736
2003 81,825,000 2.44% 768
2004 89,330,000 2.65% 838
2005 85,100,000 2.51% 798
2006 092,518,968 2.72% 868
2007 94,314,049 2.76% 884
2008 ©91,935,249 2.70% 862



CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA TABLE 12

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of December 31, 2008

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage  Overlapping
Governmental Unit Quistanding  Applicable Debt
Allentown School District $ 100,028,336 100.0% $ 1080283386
Lehigh County General Obligation Bonds 206,485,756 20.6% 42 536,066
Subtotal, overlapping debt 151,564 402
City of Altentown Direct Debt (1} 81,935,249
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 243,489.651

MNotes:
(1) Leases are not included in the Direct Debt total.
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA TABLE 15

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Per
Capita
Fiscal Personal Personal School Unemployment
Year Population {1) Income Income {2} Enrollment (3} Rate (4
1989 105,550 $ 2847844550 § 265881 16,243 4.9%
2000 106,632 2,996 998 992 28,108 16,424 4.2%
2001 106,632 3,192,988,608 29,544 16,174 5.4%
2002 106,632 3,228,816,960 30,280 16,693 7.2%
2003 106,632 3,310,923,600 31,080 16,968 6.3%
2004 108,632 3,374,796,168 31,648 17,521 7.1%
2005 106,632 3,459, 868,504 32,447 18,118 6.6%
2006 106,632 3,805,014,650 33,808 18,209 6.4%
2007 108,632 3,771,467 208 35,368 16,318 5.9%
2008 108,632 3,948 325,384 37,037 17,914 8.0%

Source:

(1) US Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census

(2} US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
{3) Allentown School District

(4) US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics
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CITY OF ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA TABLE 16

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2008 1989

Percentage Percentage

of Total Clty of Tetal City

Employer Employeas Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Allentown School District 2,910 1 J381% 2.808 3 2.69%
Mack Trucks Inc. 2,220 2 2.91% 2717 2 2.91%
Lehigh Valley Hospital 2201 3 2.83% 1.538 10 1.65%
rMuhlenbery College 2,043 4 2.88% 1,772 8 1.80%
PFL Go. 1,648 5 2.62% 1,709 7 1.93%
Lehigh County & [nstifutions 1,936 g 2.54% 2287 5 2.46%
Performance Parsonnel 1,885 7 2.47% 0.00%
Allied Temporary Services 1.871 ) 2 45% 2,358 4 2.53%
Sacred Heart Hospital 1,615 g 212% 1,588 8 1.68%
Cedar Crest College 1,269 10 1.66% 0.00%
Lucent Technologies Inc, B.071 1 8.51%
General Temp. Labor Service 1,872 5] 211%
19,848 28.13% 24 601 28.37%

Source!
City of Allentown Earned Income Tax File
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CITY OF ALLENTOWXN
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES

OPERATING MANAGEMENT

General Fund revenues arg sensitive 1o local and regional economic activity. Accordingly, revenue
cstimates prepared by the Administration and adopted by City Council should be conservative.

The annual hudget should continue to show fiscal restraint. An integral part of this restraint is the
creation of a positive cash balance {(surplus) in the General Fund at the end of the fiscal vear. IF
necessary, spending during the fiscal year should be reduced sufficiently (o create such a cash swrplus.

The annual budget should continue to be prepared, adopled and maintained in such a manner as to
avoid the following situalions;

13 Two consecutive years of operating fund deficits.

21 A current eperating tund deficit greater than the previous year.

3y An operating fund deficit in lwo or more of the last five years,

47 An abnormally large deficit in amy one year of more than 5 1o 10 percemt of net operating
revenues.

The City liquidity posiiion (the extent 1o which cash and other assets are available to pay short-term
obligations} should shew a working capital swrplos, ie., cash and short-term investments should
exgeed current liabilities.

When deficits appear to be forthcoming, the City should avoid the use of "fiseal mirrors" in order to
balance the budget. Only three alternatives are available: reduce appropriations, increase revenues, or
a combination of the bwo techniques.

The City should continue fo pursue a prudent bul agyressive cash management and investment
program, in order to meet daily cash requirements, increase the amount available for investment, and
earn the maximum rate of return on invested funds.

All reurement plans should continue to be funded and administered in accordance with the City's
Bension Recovery Ordinance and Stale Act 205 of 1984,

Contingency reserves should be maintained at a level sufficient to provide for unanticipated
expenditires of a nonrecurring nature, The City will strive to maintain a fund balance at a level at
least equal 10 five pereent (5%) of hudpeted expenditures,

Insurange reserves should be maintained at a level which, together with purchased insurance policies,
adequately indemnifies the Cily's assets and officers/employees against loss.

The City should minimize the [nancial burden on the City's taxpayers through periodic systematic
program reviews and cvaluations aimed at improving the efficiency and effectivencss of Ciry
programs. These periodic reviews should consider past trends and cxperiences elsewhere, and
revisions to annual policy guidclines should he based on current need and program efficiency. Such
information should be crucial to the preparation of the annval budget.
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The City should maintain a budget that provides for adequate maintenance of the City's infrastructure
and equipment stock and for their timely repair and/or replacement.

Cirant applications to fund new service programs with Slate or Federsl funds should be reviewed by
the City, with significant consideration given to whether locally-generated funds will be required to
supparl these programs when original funding is no longer available.

The City will continually oppose and discourage programs and actions by the State Lepislature which
would mandate cost increases to City govermment without providing an equal amovnt of sta
supphed revenue 10 offser such mandated inercases.

All fee schedules and enterprisc/user charges should be reviewed and adjusted periodicatly to ensure
that rates are equitable and cover the total cost of the service or that portion of the 1otal cost deemed
appropriaie by the City.

The Allentown Parking Authority should prepare an annual budget that is self-supporting.  An

integral part of that budget is the payment of debt service by current revenues, and the establishment
of a revenue stiucture that ensures such payment without the assistance of City funds.

CAPITAL AND DEBT MANAGEMENT

Any capital project financed through the issuance of general obligation bonds should be linanced for
a period not to exceed the expected life of the project up 1o a maximum of twenty years.

The Comprehensive Plan of the City of Allentown should be used to help evaluate the projects in the
Capital Improveiments Program,.

The Capital Improvements Program should reflect the relationship hetween the Ciny's planning and
budgering processes, wherein the planning effort defines the City's anticipated capital facilny needs
and the budpeting effort defines the Mnancial parameters of sound capital expenditure policies to meet
those needs.

Rond saies should be planned and structured in order to maintain or improve the City's bond rating
and to obtain interest rates at or below the published bond vield averages for bonds of similar ratings.

The schedule of capital facility improvements shoeld be developed in such a manner as to level the
{ity's anmual debl service payments to the maximum extent possible and to minimize fluctuations in
tax rates caused by debt-financed capital improvements.

The City should use short-term financing such as revenue and bond anticipation notes o provide
temporary financing for improvement projects or land acquisition, only when market conditions
warrant such action. Short-term debt outstanding at the end of the fscal year should ot excced five
percent (3%} of operating revenues

Net direct debt of the General Fund should be maintained below $1,000 per capita.

Met direct debt per capita for the General Fund should not exceed ten percent (10%) of per capita
personal income,
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The level of net direet debt should nor exeeed fifty percent (30%) of the State mandated legal debt
limit for the City.

Debt service payments shonld not exceed ten percent (10%) of governmental fund expenditures, in
order to minimize the impact on tax rates while providing fr the nommal replacement of public
factlitics.

A portion of the Capital Improvements Program should be supplemented with City provided services
("IN-KTND"}.

The City will establish water and sewer rates and charges to provide net operaling revenues al least
sgual to 1.3 times debt service on the City's water and sewer bonds,

ACCOUNTING, AUDITING AND FINANCIAL PLANNING

The City should maintain the highest level accounting practices. Accounting systems should be
maintaingd in ovder to facilitate financial reporting in conformance with generally accepted
accoutting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the
Amcrican Institute of Cerniticd Public Accountants (AICPAY, and the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB).

An annual audit should be performed as required by various bond indentures by an independent
public accounting firm in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.

Full disclosure should be provided in the Comprshensive Annual Financial Repert, Official
Staternents and all other financial reports.

Financia! systems should be maintained to monitor expenditures, revenues and performance of all
municipal programs on an ongoing basis,

Operating expenditures should be programmed (o include the cost of implementing  capital
IMpPTOY SIS,

The City should institute 3 "traimed-observer” Capital Plant Assessment process, in order to evaluate
and monitor the condition of its major physical assets.

COMMUNITY NEEDS AND RESOLRCES

The Cry should continue to diversify and stabilize its economic base in order o protect the
community against sconomic downturms and (o take advantage of ceononuc upswings.

The City should continue its joimt privaie/public cronomic development ¢fforts to "market”
Allentown as a desirable place to do husiness.

The City shoukd gontintue to encourage sconomic development activities that provide growth in the
(lity's tax base and employment opportunities Tor Cily residents.  In those cascs where it i3 not
realistic to locate the activity within Allentown, the City will work with other economic development
otganizations to find an appropriate location in Lehigh County or the Lehigh Valley.
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